
I-L 

ry-i^^u 

1 

2 

3 

A 

5 

6 

7 

, 8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

15 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

FILE 

J9-872/873-EL-FAC 

BEFORE 

THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO 

In the Matter of the Fuel 
Adjustment Clauses For 
Columbus Soattiem Power 
Company and Ohio Power 
Company.-. 

Case No. 09-872-EL-FAC 
Case No. 09-873-EL-FAC 

CONFIDENTIAL PROCEEDINGS 

before Mr. Jeffrey Jones and Ms, Greta See, Attomey 

Examiners, at the Public Utilities Contmission of 

Ohio^ lao East Bro^d Street, Room 11-A, Columbus, 

Ohio, called at 10:00 awm. on Monday, August 23, 

2010. 

VOLUME I 

ARMSTRONG "fi OKEY, INC, 
222 East Tovm Street, Second Floor 

Columbus, Ohio 43215-5201 
(614) 224-9481 - (800) 223-9481 

FAX - (614) 224-5724 

T) 

O 
O 

S 
tia» 

1 
1 

-10 

y 

53 

o 
m. . • < 

rn 

m 

C9 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 

"-^«<^«^ — D a t e grocesaed / f f t ^ f f ' O 

PO 



09-8 72/8 73-EI.-FAC 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13" 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

APPEARANCES 

American Electric Power 
By Ml'- Steven T, Nourse 
Mr. Matthew J. Satterwhite 
Ms- Julie L. Atchison 
One Riverside Plaza 
Columbus, Ohio 43215-2373 

On behalf of the Companies. 

Janine L. Migden-Ostiander 
By Mr, Michael E* Idzkowski 
And Mr« Gregory J, Poulos 
10 West Broad street; Suite 1800 
Columbus, Ohio 43215-3485 

On behalf of the Residential . 
Consumers of the Companies. 

McNees, Wallace & Nurick 
By MI-. Samuel C, Randazzo 
Mr„ Joseph M. Clark 
Ms, Lisa McAlister 
Fifth Third Center, Suite 1700 
21 East State Street 
Columbus, Ohio 43215 

On behalf of the Industrial Energy 
Users of Ohio. 

Richard Cordray, Ohio Attorney General 
William Wright, Section Chief 
Public Utilities Section 
By Mr- Werner L.. Margard III 
and Mr. Thomas w. McNamee 
180 East Broad Street, 9th Floor 
Columbus, Ohio 43215-3793 

' On behalf of the Staff of the Public 
Utilities Coiomission. 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC,, Columbus, Ohio (614> 224-9481 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

• • • ^ V 

INDEX 

WITNESS 

Robert C. Smith 
Direct Examination by Mr, Margard 
Cross-Examination by Mr. Idzkowski 

Marcus Dady 
Direct Examination by Mr. Margard 

Emily Medine 
Direct Examination by Mr. Margard 
Cross-Examination by Mr.. Idzkowski 
Cross-Examination by Mr. Clark 
Cross-Examination by Mr. Nourse 
Redirect Examination by Mr, Margard 
Recross-Examination by Mr. Nourse / 

Timothy M. Dooley 
Direct Examination by Mr. Satterwhite 
Cross-Examination by Mr, Idzkowski 
Cross-Examination by Mr;. Clark 
Redirect Examination by Mr. Satterwhite 

Jason T,. Rusk 
Direct Examination by Mr.. Nourse 
Cross-Examination by Mr. Idzkowski 
Redirect Examination by Mr. Nourse 

Philip J. Nelson 
Direct Examination by Mr, Nourse 
Cross-Examination by Mr. Idzkowski 
Cross-Examination by Mr. Clark 
Redirect Examination by Mr, Nourse 

Peggy I. Simmons 
Direct Examination by Mr* Satterwhite 
Cross-ExrjTnination by Mr. Idzkowski 

. Cross-Examination by Mr. Margard 

" • — — 

t 

09-872/873-EL-

PAGE 

11 
14 : 

19 

22 ^ 
23 
41 
55 
116 
117 

119 • 
121 
128 
130 

132 
133 
152 

156 
157 
169 
172 

174 
176 
186 

•H!AC 

3 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., ColumbUS, Ohio (614) 224-9481 



09-8 72/8 73-Eti-EAC 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

IS 

1? 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

INDEX 

COMMISSION-ORDERED 

lA - Report of the Management/Performance 
and Financial Audits - Public 

IB - Report of the Management/Performance 
and Financial Audits - Confidential 

JOINT EXHIBITS 

1 - OCC Stipulation 

COMPANY EXHIBITS 

1 - Prefiled Testimony of 
timothy M. Dooley - confidential 

- Prefiled Testimony of 
Timothy M. Dooley - Public 

2 - Prefiled Testimony of 
Jason T. Rusk - Confidential 

- Prefiled Testimony of 
Jason T. Rusk - Public 

3 - Prefiled Testimony of 
Philip J. Nelson - Confidential 

- Prefiled Testimony of 
Philip J. Nelson - Public 

4 - Prefiled Testimony of 
Peggy I. Siinmons 

STAFF EXHIBITS 

1 - Resume of R. Smith 

yyy 

2 - Resume of M. Dady 

3 - Resume t>f E. Medine 

IDFD AIMTD 

10 118 

10 118 

IDFD ADMTD 

189 189 

IDFD AIMTD 

120 

120 

132 

132 

156 

156 

175 

IDFD 

11 

19 

22 

131 

131 

155 

155 

173 

173 

1B8 

ADMTD 

18 

21 

118 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC, Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 



09-8 72/8 73-BIi-FAC 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Monday Morning Session, 

August 23, 2010, 

EXAMINER JONES: The Public Utilities 

Commission of Ohio has called for hearing at this 

time and place case No. 09-872 and 09-873-EL-FAC/ 

that being In the Matter of the Fuel Adjustment 

Clauses for Columbus Southern Power Company and Ohio 

power Company. 

My name is Jeffrey R, Jones, Also 

joining me on the Bench will be Greta See. We have 

been assigned by the Commission to hear these cases* 

At this point in time I'll take 

appearances on behalf of the parties. On behalf of, 

Columbus Southern Power and Ohio Power Company. 

MR. NOURSE: Thank you, your Honor. On 

behalf of Columbus Southern Power Company and Ohio 

Power Company, Stephen T, Nourse, Matthew J. 

Satterwhite, Julie L. Atchison, 1 Riverside Plaza, 

Columbus, Ohio 43215.. Thank you. 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you. On behalf of 

the staff of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio-

MR. MARGARD: Thank you, your Honor. On 

behalf of the staff of the Public Utilities 

Commission, Richard Cordxay, Attorney General, 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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William Wright, Section Chief, Public Utilities 

Sectionr by Assistant Attorneys General Werner 

Margard and Thomas McNamee, 180 East Broad Street, 

6th floor, Columbus, Ohio« 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you.. 

On behalf of the office of the Ohio 

Consumers' Counsel. 

MR. IDZKOWSKI: Thank you, your Honor, i 

On behalf of the residential custcmiers of Columbus ' 

Southern Power and Ohio Power Company, the Ohio 

Consumers' Counsel, Janine L, Migden-Ostrander, by | 

Assistant Consumers' Counsel Michael Idzkowski, 10 ' 

West Broad Street, Suite 1800, Columbus, Ohio, 43215 

EXAMINER JONES: On behalf of Industrial 

Energy Users, Ohio. 

MR. CLARK: Thank you. On behalf of the 

Industrial Energy Users, Ohio, Joseph M. Clark, 

Samuel C. Randazzo, Lisa McAlister, from the office 

of McNees, Wallace & Nurick, 21 East State Street, : 

17th floor, Columbus, Ohio, 43215, 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you. .Is counsel 

present from Intervener Ormet Primary Aluminum 

Company? 

(No response-) 

EXAMINER JONES: There's no response. 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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At this time we will take up any 

preliminary items that the parties have before we 

begin the first witnesses, 

Mr. Kourse, do you have anything? 

MR. NOURSE: Yes- Thank you, your Honor, 

A couple matters- First of all, with respect to 

confidentiality, we had a discussion off the record. 

There are several areas that have been redacted froia 

the audit report regarding several topics and 

competitively sensitive matters relating to coal 

contracts that we would like to ensure remain 

confidential consistent with the June 29th protectiVe 

order in this case. 

And I believe that the method that we've 

arranged or agreed to proceed in order to best 

protect that information would be to conduct 

cross-examination under seal, and the companies will 

work with the parties and the Commission to redact , 

the transcripts.. We can produce a public version of 

the transcript to be filed in the docket, and I 

believe that's the best way to proceed in this casei 

given the prevalenGe of that corLfidential" data.'J'--.~ ^ 

throughout the audit report and the parties' 

testimony. 

EXAMINER JONES: Any parties disagree 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., ColumbUS, Ohio (614) 224-9481 



09-872/873-EL-PAC 

1 

2 

3 

4 

3 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

IB 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

with Mr. Nourse's characterization? 

MR. IDZKOWSKI: No, your Honor, 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you. Then that is 

how we will proceed,. 

Mr. Nourse, your next issue. 

MR„ NOURSE: Yes, your Honor, The 

companies indicated at the prehearing conference thit 

we'd likely want to file rebuttal testimony. We do-; 

have some narrowly focused rebuttal testimony that's 

been completed- It's being copied right now. It i^ 

a few pages from each of the three witnesses that 

deal with the accounting and the coal-related 

matters. 

We would propose to file and serve it on 

the parties, hand-deliver it this morning, and have 

those company witnesses adopt that rebuttal at the 

conclusion of the other parties' and the auditor's 

testimony in this case, at this point reserving the 

possibility of doing some limited oral rebuttal in 

addition to that written rebuttal. 

We will have that momentarily this .-̂ - _, 

morning and serve it ô ~iSte Bench and the parties, if 

that's acceptable. 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you. 

Any comments or concerns with 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Colmnbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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Mr. Nourse's suggestion? 

MR. CLARK: Your Honor, the only concern 

I would have or question would be, I assume we'll 

reserve all rights for motions to strike or other 

matters that might be outside the scope of rebuttal 

if that happens. 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you, Mr, Clark, L 

was just going to say that of course you may file 

information that will not be deemed admissible or 

anything in this proceeding or otherwise accepted by 

the Commission. It will be subject to the 

appropriate motions to strike when it's presented, 

But I would appreciate if you would get 

that rebuttal testimony in the parties' hands as soon 

as you can this morning, 

MR, NOURSE: Thank you, your Honor. 

EXAMINER JONES: Including the Bench. 

MR. NOURSE: Yes. Thank you, your Honor, 

EXAMINER JONES: Any other preliminary 

items before we begin this morning? 

MR. NOURSE: No, your Honor. 

- EXAMINER-.JONES: If not^ Mr. Margard, ydu 

may call your first witness. 

MR. MARGARD: Thank you, your Honor, The 

parties have requested an opportunity to 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio {614) 224-9481 
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cross-examine the auditors and the auditors are being 

made available for that purpose. Preliminary to 

calling the first of the auditors, I would request 

that the Report of the Management/Performance and 

Financial Audits in this case be marked as 

Commission-ordered Exhibit No. 1. 

I have copies of both the redacted and 

confidential versions. I would request that the 

redacted version be marked as Commission-ordered 

Exhibit lA and that the confidential version be 

marked as Commission-ordered Exhibit IB, Since these 

proceedings are closed for purposes of examination, I 

would presume that most of the questions will be 

asked with respect to the confidential version, and 

for the sake of convenience of the parties I would , 

think either "audit report" or "Commission Exhibit 1" 

would suffice to identify that document. 

That being said, your Honor, I would call 

Mr- Ralph C Smith to the stand„ 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you, Mr. Margard, 

and those documents shall be so marked.. 

" (EXHIBITS MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.) ; 

EXAMINER JONES: I, too, would ask that 

since we are under a closed record at this point in, . 

time that we use the confidential ̂ version which has 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9461 
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been marked IB for most references unless otherwise 

stated. 

Would you please raise your right hand? 

(Witness sworn.) 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you. You may 

proceed, Mr. Margard. 

MR. MARGARD: .Thank you, 

RALPH C. SMITH 

being first duly sworn, as prescribed by law, was 

examined and testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

By Mr, Margard: 

Q.. State your name and business address, 

please. 

A, My name is Ralph c. Smith, My business 

address is Larkin & Associates, PLLC, 15728 

Faimington Road, Livonia, Michigan, 48154. 

Q.. Thank you„ 

MR, MARGARD: Your Honor, may I approach? 

. EXAMINER JONES: Yes, you may. 

-(EXHIBIT MARBCED FOR-IDENTIFICATION,) 

Q. Mr, Smith, I have handed you a multipag^ 

document marked for purposes of identification as 

Staff Exhibit I.. Do ̂ ou recognize this document? 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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A. Yes. ; .-

Q. And is this the document that was 

submitted as part of the proposal to perform the 

audits in this case? 

A. Yes, it is-

Q. And does this document set forth your 

professional qualifications? 

A. It does. 

Q- Do you have any changes, additions to 

this document? 

A. No. 

MR. MARGARD: Can all of the parties hear 

Mr„ Smith? Do we need to use the microphones? 

(Off the record.) 

EXAMINER JONES: Mr. Margard, you may 

continue. 

MR. MARGARD: Thank you, your Honor. 

Q. Mr, Smith, do you have before you 

Commission-ordered Exhibit No. 1, the 

Management/Performance and Financial Audit performed 

in these cases? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q„ And did you assist in the preparation 6 t 

these reports? 

^ A. I did, yes. 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Colunibus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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Q„ Are you able to identify which sections 

you were responsible for assisting with? 

A.. Yes. Larkin & Associates was responsiljjle 

for Chapter 7, the financial audit of the Fuel 

Adjustment Clause Rider.. 

Q.. Have you reviewed that chapter prior to 

your testimony today to determine whether there are 

any changes, corrections, or modifications required? 

A.. Yes, I have. I notice there's a couple 

of minor typos. Other than that, it appears to be 

accurate.. 

Q. Do you want to make those corrections for 

us? ' 

A- Sure.. At page 7-24 the sixth line up 

from the bottom, it says, it starts with the word 

"FAC"; it says the cumulative FAC. It should say. 

under, u-n-d-e-r, underrecovery. And then I noticed 

one other typo and that one's on page 7-86, this isf 

the seventh line up from the bottom and it says 

"Public Service PUCO of Indiana." Instead of saying 

"PUCO," it should say "Commission," _; 

Those are the only changes of which I'm 

aware, 

EXAMINER JONES: Very good. 

MR. MARGARD: Your- Honor, I would make 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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Mr. Smith a v a i l a b l e f o r c r o s s - e x a m i n a t i o n , 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you. 

Mr-. Idzkowski . 

MR. IDZKOWSKI: Yes, thank you, your 

Honor, As OCC raised off the record, we would wish 

to now on the record, most of the questions we would 

have had for our witness will be addressed in a 

stipulation that the OCC is drafting and that all of 

the parties in this case, except for Ormet, have thus 

far seen and agreed to, so we just have a few 

questions for this witness._ 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you. 

MR, IDZKOWSKI: That stipulation will be 

prepared and submitted during the course of this 

hearing. 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank, you, 

Mr, Idzkowski. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

By Mr. Idzkowski; 

Q, Can I refer you to your financial audit 

recommendations on page 1-7, please. : 

A. Okay, I^m there, 

Q, Thank you. Regarding t h e f i r s t f i n a n c i a l 

a u d i t recommendation, t h e r e y o u ' r e d i s c u s s i n g FAC 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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workbooks explanations and identifications of the 

differences between the includable FAC accounts or 

amounts recorded in the general ledger versus 

includable FAC amounts that were derived from other 

sources- Do you see that? 

A. Yes„ 

Q„ What are the differences between 

includable FAC amounts recorded in the general ledger 

versus includable FAC and other sources? 

A, In general, the general ledger contains 

the amounts that pertain to Columbus Southern and 

Ohio Power„ They each have their separate general 

ledger, and their general ledger contains amounts in 

total, and in some instances, those amounts are 

subject to various allocations foi inclusion or 

exclusion before they end up in the FAC. 

Q.. Do you know what the extent is — can you 

explain the extent of the differences besides — 

A, I can give.some illustrated examples. 

For example, the purchased power costs are recorded 

in the general ledger under a series of subaccounts; 

Some of those subaccounts are includable in the FAC' 

and some of them, before being included in the FAC, 

are subject to various allocations because the FAC. 

basically pertains to retail customers. So some of 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224^9481 
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the total amounts in the general ledger then do not 

end up being fully included in the FAC. 

Q. Is there a particular pattern, such as a 

general ledger is always higher than other sources? 

A,. If amounts are allocated from the general 

ledger, then only a portion of those would be 

included in the FAC, so for the allocated amounts, 

the general ledger would essentially include 

100 percent and then the FAC would only include the 

allocated portion of those, 

Q. I'm sorry, are you done? 

A. Yes, 

Q.. Thank you. 

And what's your understanding of the 

company's, AEP's, agreement on this particular issue? 

Do they, agree to include in the monthly work — FAC 

workbooks/ do they agree to include the amounts for; 

the 2010 audit or how about for the 2009 audit? 

A'.. It's my understanding that respectively 

we are going to include additional documentation, 

either monthly reconciliation packages, and I belie-R?© 

they're going to do that prospectively, and they 

provided an example in response to EVA 4-11, 

Q. If you can look at your financial' auditi 

recommendation No» 3, please, on that same page. Can 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614| 224-9481 
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you explain why, if you know, why Larkin was unable 

to trace most of the information provided to the FAC 

workbooks? 

A.. Yes« We were able to trace the 

information through the FAC workbooks, but when we : 

attempted to trace beyond the FAC workbooks to actual 

invoices, we ran into some audit trail difficulties 

there, and the company I believe has agreed to try to 

create a better audit trail prospectively.. 

MR, IDZKOWSKI: Thank you. That's all 

the questions I have at this time. 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you. 

Mr. Clark, 

MR- CLARK: No questions, your Honor.. 

EXAMINER JONES: Mr. Nourse or 

Mr. Satterwhite? 

MR. NOURSE: No questions, your Honor. 

EXAMINER JONES: Staff have any redirect 

for this witness? 

MR- MARGARD: No questions on redirect-

Thank you, your Honor. 

• EXAMINER JONES: Thank you, Mr. Smith, I 

believe you may step down at this time. 

Mr, Margard, would you move for the 

admission of Staff Exhibit No, 1? 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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MR, MARGARD: I would move admission of 

' that exhibit, your Honor, 

EXAMINER JONES: Objections? 

• MR„ NOURSE: No, your Honor.. 

MR.. CLARK: No, your Honor-

EXAMINER JONES: If not. Staff Exhibit 

No. 1 will be admitted. 

MR. IDZKOWSKI: I'm sorry, was that 

to — 

MR.. MARGARD: His CV, the qualifications. 

MR, IDZKOWSKI: Yes, I'm sorry. Thank 

you, your Honor. I'm sorry to interrupt you. 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you. 

MR. IDZKOWSKI: No objection. 

{EXHIBIT ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE,) 

EXAMINER JONES: Mr. Margard, you may 

call your next witness. 

• MR. MARGARD: Thank you, your Honor, 

Staff would call Mr.. Mark Dady.. 

EXAMINER JONES: Would you raise your 

right hand.. 

(Witness sworn.) 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you. 

Mr„ Margard, you may proceed.. 

MR, MARGARD: Thank you, your Honor. 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., ColumbUS, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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MARCUS DADY 

being first duly sworn, as prescribed by law, was 

examined and testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

By Mr. Margard: 

Q.. Please state your name and business 

address, please, 

A. My name" is Marcus Dady. My business 

address is Larkin & Associates, PLLC, 15728 

Farmington Road, Livonia, Michigan, 48154. 

MR. MARGARD: May I approach, your Hondr? 

EXAMINER JONES: Yes, you may, 

MR- MARGARD: Thank you. 

(EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.) 

Q, Mr.. Dady, I've handed you a multipage 

document marked for purposes of identification as 

Staff Exhibit No. 2. Can you identify this document, 

please? , 

A. It's my qualifications that was included 

with the proposal in our response to the request fot 

proposal for the FAC audit, 

Q. Do you have any additions, corrections, 

changes to this document? 

A.. No. 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC, Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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Q. You also were responsible for preparation 

of a portion of the audit report in this case; is 

that correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q- And you have Commission-ordered Exhibit 

No, 1 in front of you. 

A.. That's the report? 

Q,. The audit report, yes, sir. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Are you able to identify which portions 

of the audit report you were responsible for 

assisting with? 

A, I assisted on Chapter 7 as well, the 

financial audit of the FAC. 

Q.. And have you had an opportunity to review 

that chapter prior to your testimony today? 

A, Yes. 

Q.. And other than the corrections already 

noted by Mr.. Smith, do you have any changes. 

corrections, additions of any sort to that chapter? 

A. No, I don't. 

MR. - MARGARD: Your Honor, I'd make 

Mr. Dady available for cross-examination.. 

EXAMINER JONES; Thank you. 

Mr. Idzkowski, questions? 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, I N C . , ColunibUS, Ohio (614) 2 2 4 - 9 4 8 1 
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MR.. IDZKOWSKI: Thank you. No questions/ 

your Honor, 

EXAMINER JONES: Mr.. Clark? 

MR. CLARK: No questions, your Honor. 

EXAMINER JONES; Mr, Nourse? 

MR. NOURSE: No questions. 

MR. MARGARD: Well, that was easy. 

EXAMINER JONES: Mr, Dady/ I guess youi 

are excused at this time. 

THE WITNESS: Okay.. 

MR. MARGARD: Your Honor, I would move, 

for admission of Staff Exhibit No. 2, 

EXAMINER JONES: Any objections to the 

admission of Staff Exhibit No.. 2, the qualifications 

of Mr. Dady? 

If not, Staff Exhibit No. 2 shall be 

admitted. 

(EXHIBIT ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.) 

MR, MARGARD: Your Honor, I would like to 

call Ms. Emily Medine to the stand, please, 

EXAMINER JONES: Please raise your rigl̂ t 

hand.. --. 

(Witness sworn.) 

- EXAMINER JONES: Thank you ,. 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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EMILY MEDINE 

being first duly sworn, as prescribed by law, was 

examined and testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

By Mr. Margard: 

Q, Would you please state your name and 

business address for the record? 

A. Emily Sue Medine, 1800 Beachwood, 

Boulevard, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, 15217, 

Q. Thank you, 

MR, MARGARD: May I approach, your Honor? 

EXAMINER JONES: Yes, you may, 

(EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.) ; 

Q.. Ms. Medine, I've handed you a single-page 

document marked for purposes of identification as 

Staff Exhibit No. 3. Can you identify that documeat 

for uSf please? 

A, Yes, That is a.copy of my resxam§ that : 

was included in the proposal. 

Q, And is it true and accurate, or do you 

have any changes, additions, or corrections to makê  

to it today? 

A.. It's true and accurate. 

Q„ Thank you. 

You have before you what's been marked as 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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Commission-ordered Exhibit No.. 1. 

A,. Yes. 

Q. And were you responsible for preparation 

of any portion of this document? 

A. Yes ̂  I was responsible for the 

preparation of the overall audit and the 

management/performance audit, which would be all 

chapters except 7, 

MR.. MARGARD: Thank you. 

Your Honor, I make Ms, Medine available 

for cross-examination. 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you, 

Mr. Idzkowski. 

MR. IDZKOWSKI: Thank you, your Honor. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

By Mr., Idzkowski: 

Q- Good morning, Ms, Medine. 

A- Good morning., 

THE WITNESS: Excuse me, I had a couple 

corrections. Is that all right? ; 

EXAMINER JONES: Yes, Do you want to go 

through those now? 

THE WITNESS: I would lilce to make a few 

minor corrections to the report. The first one beiiig 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Coluiobus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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on page 2-20 where I would like to amend the 

statement in the last full paragraph which starts 

with "the market price for this coal was over $100 

per ton.." I would like to amend that to '•was 

substantially greater than this at that time." 

On page 2-21 on the large paragraph at • 

the middle I'd like to include a footnote after it 

that states — after the sentence, "AEPSC-

commissioned H H ^ H H M J H H M ^ ^ H ^^ p^^^^^^ ̂  mind 

study for the H H H H H I ^ ^ B " ^^^ ^^^ footnote would 

state, "The second H H report performed in 

October 2007 was subsequently delivered to the 

auditor, 

EXAMINER JONES: I'm sorry, Ms.. Medine, 

could you just go over that second correction once 

again? 

THE WITNESS: Sure. Basically, I'll 

describe it and then I can give you the exact 

language,. It was basically there were two i ^ ^ 

reports and it was only last week we learned of the 

second HBi^report. So I just put a footnote saying, 

"A second H M report performed in October 2007 was 

subsequently disclosed to the auditor." ; 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you. 

MR, NOURSE: I thought you said 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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"delivered" the first time.. 

THE WITNESS: Okay, delivered to the 

auditor. 

And then on page 2-24 there are a number 

of corrections to the second paragraph. Under 

I, the initial m should be changed to |H||*; 

And the next sentence which states/ "AEPSC also 

agreed to increase the base price for all coal by -

$11^1 per ton effective January 1st, 2009," should be 

deleted and the statement then should be replaced by, 

"AEP also agreed to increase the base price by 

$^H|||H|per ton on the first.|H million tons 

delivered effective January 1st, 2009." 

Then I would like to — 

MR, NOURSE; I'm sorry. Could you repeat 

that one? 

THE WITNESS: No. I'll be the court 

reporter: AEP also agreed to increase the base pride 

^y ^ • • • • H p e r ton on the first | million tons 

delivered," I think I said, "effective January 1st, 

2009." 

•And.I would like to add a footnote to 

that sentence basically saying, "These terms differ; 

from the AEPSC December 29th, 2009, justification 

memorandum, which is of the same date as the 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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agreement." 

Thank you. 

EXAMINER JONES: That concludes the . 

corrections? 

THE WITNESS: • Yes, 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you. 

Mr, Idzkowski. 

MR. IDZKOWSKI: Thank you, your Honor. : 

MR. CLARK: Sorry, your Honor. Before 

Mr. Idzkowski, I could not catch that last footnote. 

EXAMINER JONES: If the court reporter 

could read it back, please, 

(Record read.) 

MR, CLARK: Thank you, your Honor. 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you. 

Now Mr. Idzkowski, 

MR. IDZKOWSKI: Thank you, 

, Q. (Mr. Idzkowski) Ms. Medine, I'd like to 

ask you about the effects of the company, the AEP 

company's, renegotiations in. 2007 and 2008 that you 

discuss in your audit report. Is it your 

understanding that the renegotiations of contracts 

between AEP in 2007 and 2008 and its coal supplier 

that you discuss in your audit' report, is it your 

understanding that those, negotiations caused the 
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price of coal passed through to customers to increase 

dramatically for the period of 2009? 

A.. Yes, 

Q.. Do you have a copy of your audit report? 

A, I do.. 

Q- Could you look at page — at your Exhibit 

2-15 on page 2-19, please, 

A, Yes, 

Q. Have you found that? 

A„ Uh-huh, 

Q,. Did you create this chart? 

A.. Yes. 

Q.. All right. And this is regarding spot 

coal agreements; is that correct? 

A. Correct,. 

Q. That the company entered into during the 

audit period of 2009, correct? 

A. Not necessarily. It would be coal that 

was delivered in 2009, some of which would have been 

entered into in earlier periods. 

Q. Thank you for making that distinction- ; 

Do we know when this chart, when the spot coal 

agreements were made? 

A., My guess is, though I can't say that I 

checked each one, is that embedded in each of the 
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purchase order numbers is the purchase year. 

Q. And where would that be embedded, to your 

understanding? 

A.. That would be — if you ignore the last 

three numbers, it would be the next ,two-

Q, Prior to? 

A, So 09, 08. 

Q. So going by that standard, that's your 

understanding, it looks as though almost all but 

perhaps three of the purchases were made outside of 

the audit period of 2009, correct? 

A. Again, that's my speculation. I didn't; 

actually cross-check each purchase order, but that 

would be my speculation. 

Q.. And then these were all for purchases -'-

for coal that was delivered in 2009 during the audit 

period, correct? 

A. That's my understanding. This is coal. 

that was actually purchased during the audit period., 

Q.. Thank you. 

Would you look at page 2-21, please« In 

the main paragraph, the paragraph, about six lines 

down you start a sentence, "In order to match 

revenues and costs" — do you see that? — "EVA 

believes that the PUCO should consider whether it 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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million cash would be appropriate to credit the 

payment." Do you see that? 

A. What page are you on? 

Q.. Page 2-21. 

EXAMINER JONES: Mr. Idzkowski, are yoii 

in the large paragraph in the middle of that page? 

MR. ID2iK0WSKI: Yes, 

EXAMINER JONES: In about the middle of 

the paragraph? 

MR. IDZKOWSKI: Yes.. 

A, Thank you, I'm sorry. I see it. 

Q. There you're discussing EVA believes PUCO 

should consider it would be appropriate to credit a 

$ Hi million cash payment, 

A. Yes, 

And also, I guess I'll break the ice, and 

[jJimmiPimiJjj. DO you see that? 

Yes, 

Against OPCo's or OPCo's FAC, 

also the 

A. 

Q-

under recove ry 

A. Yes . 

Q. Do you make t h a t s t a t e m e n t because t h e 

r e n e g o t i a t i o n s a f f e c t e d t h e c o s t of t h e t o n s t h a t 

were sh ipped d u r i n g 2009? 

A.. 2009 and 2010 and 2011 . 
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Q.. And if you can, please look at page 2-22. 

The second paragraph, last sentence starts with the 

word "Equity," 

A.. Yes. 

Q. You say, "Equity suggests that the PUCO 

consider whether some of the realized value should be 

credited against the under-recovery," 

A,. Yes. 

Q.. This realized value, does it include the 

$ m million cash payment? 

A.. The $H| million cash payment and the 

value of the 

Q. Does it also include a $ H million note 

from the coal supplier to AEP? 

A. It did. not, 

Q. And on that page you state — let me find 

it. Sorry.. If I may have a moment. 

In that main paragraph, or the second 

paragraph, you say "That being said, the contract was 

an OPCo asset," 

__.__: , A. .̂ eŝ ._ _:v::_:-.;v-- •:.-•;.„.,,. ..\,__.:. .̂.._|_..̂. 

Q, "Ajid the value associated with i t wbulct 

have flowed through t o OPCo ra tepayers through the 

ESP period had the re not been an ea r ly contract 

t e rmina t ion ." Is t h i s an equity i s sue for you? 
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A. Y e s . 

Q. And you continue in your testimony, or in 

your audit report rather, "Further, the difference 

bet-ween the price of the replacement coal and the 

contract price is one factor behind the large OPCo 

FAC under-recovery." Again, this an equity issue for 

you? 

A., Yes. 

Q.. Is it your opinion that as a result of ; 

the renegotiation of the coal contract between AEP 

and its supplier, AEP's customers lost the benefit of 

a low price and at the same time didn't receive an 

equitable amount of the realized value of the new 

contract? 

MR, NOURSE: Objection. 

EXAMINER JONES: Grounds? 

MR. NOURSE; Your Honor, this is friendly 

cross. OCC has their own witnesses, 

EXAMINER JONES: I will allow her to 

answer the question, 

A. I certainly think it's a reason to look. 

at it in some detail.: " - -. -

Q,. Did you read in preparation for this 

hearing and your testimony today, did you read the 

testimony of Mr*, Hess? 
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A. I d i d . 

Q. Mr. Hess testifies that the 

negotiation caused the FAC customers to bear the 

total costs of the negotiation while AEPSC and OP are 

allowed to retain the majority of the benefits. Do 

you find that to be an accurate statement? 

MR, NOURSE: Objection, 

EXAMINER JONES: Grounds? 

MR- NOURSE: Friendly cross, your Honor.. 

He's asking the witness to adopt the testimony of 

Mr, Hess., 

MR. IDZKOWSKI: If I may respond, your . 

Honor, 

EXAMINER JONES: You may respond. 

MR. IDZKOWSKI: I don't believe there's 

going to be any friendly cross in this hearing. We; 

have an independent auditor and an independent 

opinion witness from an independent party who's 

testifying, and I'm asking them to comment on 

testimony from another independent witness, and I'd̂  

like to know if this witness thinks that their 

statement is' accurate, 

MR, NOURSE: You're saying Mr- Hess is ; 

independent now, too? 

MR, IDZKOWSKI: They would be, I woyld 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., ColunibUS, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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1 assume, from an auditor, yes. 

2 EXAMINER JONES: I will allow the 

2 question.. 

^ A.. I'm wondering if you can provide me the 

^ actual hard copy so I can just review it. 

5 Q. Sure. 

^ MR. IDZKOWSKI: If I may have a moment, 

8 your Honor., 

5 EXAMINER JONES: Yes, you may.. 

10 MR, IDZKOWSKI: May I approach, your 

11 Honor? 

12 EXAMINER JONES: Yes, you may, 

1̂  MR. IDZKOWSKI: I'm going to provide, for 

1"̂  the record, a copy of Mr- Hess's confidential version 

15 of his testimony to the witness. It begins at page 5 

16 and goes to page 6. 

1̂  Q. The part I read I believe s tar ts with the 

18 word "FAC customers." 

19 A, I think my issue is I can't give you a 

20 complete accounting of the settlement .agreement, so-

21 the statement of the total costs of the negotiation; 

22 is what I'm a little unwilling to necessarily agree 

23 to. But clearly I think that-the spirit is correct, 

24 that most of the benefits did not flow through to the 

25 FAC customers of the negotiation a^d certainly didn't 
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offset the fact that there would be additional fuel 

purchase costs during the ESP period. 

Q. In your audit did you find that JlJfHHI 

would have ceased to supply coal to AEP at the 

existing price if the contract had not been 

renegotiated? 

A, No, That being said, I didn't actually 

look at that particular issue, but given my 

understanding of the industry or 

circumstances at that time, I do not believe that 

that would have occurred, 

MR. NOURSE: Your Honor, could I have the 

question reread? 

EXAMINER JONES: Yes, you may, 

{Record read.) 

MR. IDZKOWSKI: May I proceed? 

EXAMINER JONES: Yes, you may, 

MR, IDZKOWSKI: Thank you. 

Q.. (Mr, Idzkowski) Ms.. Medine, can you look 

at your audit report at .page 2-22, the last sentende 

in the first paragraph, please. 

A. Yes-

Q. Where it says, "AEPSC is planning to 

start the permitting of the reserves which should 

enhance the value of the reserve regardless of which 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614} 224-9481 
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s t ra tegy i s pursued." 

A. Yes. 

Q, Do you mean that the value of the reserve 

would be enhanced upward from $^mmillion? 

A.. What I mean there is regardless gf what 

the value of the reserve is of the coal in the 

ground, the permitted reserve would have more market 

value than unpermitted reserves, 

Q:. DO you know by what amount it would be? 

A„ No, It would vary. 

Q, How do you know that AEPSC is planning to 

start the permitting of the reserves? 

A, That was disclosed in the interviews with 

Mr.. Henry.. 

Q. Can you look at your footnote 8 on page 

2-21, please. There you're discussing AEP's price! 

assumption, 

A. Yes, 

Q. Do you find that? And you say, "The 

reserve has a negative $ ^ million value assuming an 

U percent discount rate." What do you mean by that? 

A. If you looked at the ••report, ~and 

they provided a table which showed the net present 

value summaries under different cost and price 

assumptions, and that was assuming AEP's price 
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forecast and an ^ percent discount rate. 

Q. You continue in that footnote, "It is 

EVA'S opinion that AEPSC's price assumption is very 

conservative." Why do you say that their price 

assumption is very conservative? 

A. Again, on page 2-8 of the April 2009 m 

report, immediately above the summary of the net 

present values, they show — ||^Hshows what AEP's 

price assumption was versus what H H H P^^ce . . 

assumptions were.. 

Q.. 5?hat is the effect of a very conservative 

price assumption? 

A. It reduces the value of the reserve, 

Q.. Is that effect fair and equitable for 

AEP's customers ? 

A. It depends on how you're valuing it. If 

you're using the ̂ ^Mreport to value the reserve^ 

then I think you would probably want to use a more — 

an accurate forecast of prices to determine the 

value, 

Q. In your discussion on page 2-21 above 

that footnote, last sent.̂ hce of the last main 

paragraph where it says "Using^^^^^prrce 

forecast," do you see that? 

A, Yes, 
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Q, You say, " the value of the reserve on a 

net present value bas i s using an || | | | percent discount 

r a t e would be $m|^ ' '^^^^i^*" ^^ Y^^ ®̂® that? 

A. Yes, 

Q. I s t ha t $ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ H value an accurate 

va lua t ion of the ^ ^ B H B I ^ H H ^ 

A, Again, I d i d n ' t do an accurate 

evaluation.. I assumed tha t — I d i d n ' t do an 

evaluat ion. I was b a s i c a l l y repor t ing on what 

va lua t ion tha t ||||||||||H did at AEP's d i r e c t i v e , and i t 

provided — obviously, B J I H f^j^^ s t rongly enough 

about the fact t ha t i t s p r i c e forecast was more 

reasonable than AEP's because i t ac tua l ly had a 

separa te l i n e showing what the r e s u l t s are using 

AEP'g p r i ce fo recas t . 

So IIHHIhad i t s own forecas t , and I 

assume i t f e l t s t rongly about t h a t , so I simply was 

r epor t ing , I did not do my own ana ly s i s . 
• 

Q- Is i t poss ib le t h a t the value i s in 

excess of ^ H mi l l ion? 

A.. According t o the ^^Hj j repor t , i t found ia 

range cf U | | t O - m m i l l i o n d o l l a r s based upon ^ • 

d i f f e ren t di s count . r a t e s •using ' ^ ^ ^ H H coal p r i ce : 

forecast. . 

Q, So a $^M mil l ion value i s conservative 
-

AĴ MSTRONG & OKEY, I N C . , Co lumbus , Ohio (614) 2 2 4 - 9 4 8 1 
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within the range of the ̂ ^^^Breport. 

A.. It was the lowest nurt̂ er that lllllll 

produced using its own price forecast. 

Q,. On that page, 2-21, your report found 

that AEPSC had not yet decided what to do with the 

In your opinion, is it fair and 

equitable to AEP's customers for AEPSC to hold the i 

^ ^ ^ ^ g ^ m ^ ^ g indefinitely? 

A, I think if AEP wanted to transfer the 

value of the |HH|[HHHH||| '̂̂  '^^^ customers/ then it 

certainly would have the right to do that. So I'm 

not making a judgment as to what it does with the 

reserve. I'm siirgply making a judgment that the value 

associated with the reserve should be considered to 

be applied to.the underrecovery. 

Q. If you can look at page 1-5 of your audit 

report, please. 

A. Yes, 

Q, Okay.. And in your footnote you discuss 

the ESP limiting the annual FAC rate increases. Do 

you see that? 

^ ^ A. Yes. ' : . 

Q.. And it limited it to fixed percentage ,. 

increases that are reasonable in the context of 

the portfolio that AEPSC employs- You say, 
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"While it's hard to tie the under-recovery to 

specific events, the extraordinary increases as a 

result of the renegotiation with one supplier and a 

contract buyout helped explain the large 

under-recovery," 

And then also in the top of paragraph 2, 

you state that the two events alone helped to explain 

more than half of OPCo's underrecovery. 

Based on these facts would you consider 

it fair the benefits of AEP's contract renegotiations 

with ^ ^ ^ ^ H t o flow through to customers in the form 

of a credit to the FAC deferral? 

A, I think what I said is that I think it's 

something that the Commission should consider because 

of the equity issue,. 

Q, Have you read Dr. Duann's testimony in 

this case? 

A., Yes, I have« 

Q.. Among other matters, Dr, Duann testifieis ' 

regarding this value of the ^•MMH|||^^HHH| ̂ ^ 

determined in the H H | report at $HH| million 

conservatively and he advocates that the $U|||| million 

value should immediately flow through to customers as 

a credit to the FAC deferral. Do you agree that thjis 

would be a fair outcome for customers? 

ARMSTRONG £ OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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A. I think, again, I will defer that 

decision-making to others, I think that's certainly 

one option. 

MR. IDZKOWSKI: Thank you, Ms.. Medine. 

I have no other questions at this time,! 

your Honor. 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you. 

Mr. Clark? 

MR- CLARK: Your Honor, may I have just a 

couple minutes to kind of gather, my notes before we 

go on? 

EXAMINER JONES: How long do you think 

you need? 

MR_ CLARK: Literally probably two 

minutes, 

EXAMINER JONES: Okay.. Go ahead and take 

the two minutes. 

(Off the record,) 

MR„ CLARK: Thank you, your Honor, I 

appreciate it. 

EXAMINER JONES: You may proceed, 

Mr, Clark. 

CROSS -EXAMINATION 

By Mr, Clark: 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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Q. Good morning. Is it Medine? 

A.. Yes, 

Q. Ms. Medine, my name is Joe Clark, I'm 

counsel fox Industrial Energy Users-Ohio, and I have 

a few questions for you as well on cross. 

I'd like to talk a little more about the 

value of the H M M M M M M M H I ^^^ j ^^^^ some questions 

for you,. Earlier you had mentioned that you're now 

aware that there are two BHl^^P^^ts, and have you 

reviewed both reports? 

A.. I reviewed the second report this 

morning 

Q.. To clarify, when you say "the second 

report," can you give me the date of the report 

that — was that the 2007 report that you actually 

reviewed? 

A,. Yeah, it was October of 2007, 

Q, There when you say "second report," it's 

not necessarily chronologically as much as that's the 

second report that you reviewed, 

A, Correct. 

Q.. Okay. And i s i t your understanding tha t 

AEPSC booked the value of the ^ | ^ ^ H | | ^ H | cit 

A- That ' s my understanding. 

ARMSTRONG i OKEY, INC, Columbus, Ohi.o f614) 224-9481 
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Q. Did t h i s v a l u a t i o n come from t h e 

October 10, 2007, r e p o r t ? 

A.. Not e x a c t l y . X t h i n k t h a t t h e — t h e 

October 2007" r e p o r t was performed t o a s s i s t ASP in • 

. i t s - n e g o t i a t i o n s wi th | H J H H . B a s i c a l l y i t appear.s 

t h a t . i t was used so" t ha t - "%? woulei>e knowiedgeafeile; 

i n n e g o t i a t i o n s . w i t h ; m ^ ^ . a s they, were. f i g u r t n g , . ^ 

o u t ' t h e Yai;ue^6.f t h ^ ^e^t^feleroent^a^re^^nt how tp*"--̂ :̂:.:: 

a l l o c a t e • d o l l a r 5.> 

•--gO" t h e AEP | ;epor t . a c t u a l l y , -—:.ex(?i!L5^ 

The ] [ j ^P : r e p o r t •ih";"Ootio:ti;^r.,>iO&7-;dQes 

Specifically^":; fhaM.. - ^ l^;:iGri^;-of/; t h e ,nu^ers ; , th l i i |^ 

• i n • a^ref..;£Mii^-;there| ame- a;-li^^^e^vdf•• numis^fers/." \tM ;-fa^l.. 

on-page, i t i t s t i l u s / i r i : M H B | : : c ^ i p . i o f l t^^^. iô 5£iEdi4% 

^V^IH^ A£P""sli&ilei' piape-:otf:;tife-'^p^ ;'. -̂̂  

•$|j | ;miUiohv." • Sd- i t ; ; d i d ; ; ^ p t ; p r o i ^ any.;; 

•specific, nuiJ3;er" oth^i^^ .V;."; 

; •' Q, "•:Sut t M t paiftic:U&i?;--hu^ 

t ^ 6 t % f - - , ' q , Q & ^ ^ 7 \ ' . ... 

A, • \ l t i^; 0ne of,'"you-.%iow^ a ;d#|h^^^ 

r_alf nnmhe^ 

Q. 

was one of 

" • ^ " 

•"•my. e y e b a l l ' 

' "S - i . • , 

•,vl'*m; soriry.;.;-yTb 

haw. 

•Let 

was-

ifiafe--

riiany "number s? ' 

me Goun-t,..-:" 

r i g h t . , 

Lopjcs 

§xife; 

"• i i ^ e -

d i d 

H'-' 

yQ% -'̂ Mr ^ k ^ 

L06{s:s^;li|^; ;;;;•• 
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Q.. So there*s a range of valuations in this 

report, correct? 

A, There are a range of NPV calculations, 

but again, it was more of — in my mind it was more 

of a strategy document that was provided to AEP to 

assist them in their negotiations with 

Q.. And this October 2007 report, this report 

was prepared on a desktop basis, correct? 

• A. Yes-

Q-, Additionally, the report specifically 

states that it was not intended to be presented or 

prepared in accordance with the Uniform Standards of 

Professional Appraisal Practice Standards, correct? 

A„ Correct,. 

Q.. Now, this, I'll say the — this 

additional report, the April 30th, 2009, jJUJH report, 

you reviewed that report too, correct? 

A.. Yes, 

Q.. And if I could direct your attention to 

that report, page 2-8 of that report if I could. 

A.. Yes. 

QM In this report the lowest value from the 

findings on this page is ̂ H million, correct? 

A.. The lowest value using | H ^ H | | coal price 

forecast. 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, I N C . , ColuiRbUS, Ohio (614) 2 2 4 - 9 4 8 1 
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Q.. Yes, And they provide three other ranges 

of values, correct, in this report, using their 

forecasted coal price? 

A.. They provide a range of values using 

AEP's price forecast.. At least that's my 

understanding, 

Q.. But depending upon the assumptions use4/ 

there is a range in this report between H I ^^^ 

HBj million dollars, correct? 

A, Again, using the H H j fuel price 

forecast, coal price. 

Q,. I would like to now turn to your audit 

report. Specifically, as Mr. Idzkowski referred you 

to as well, Exhibit 2-15 on page 2-19 of the audit 

report. 

A. xes, 

Q. Looking at Exhibit 2-15, there's a 

purchase order associated with each contract, 

correct? 

A.. Yes. 

Q, And is it your understanding that certain 

digits in the purchase order are significant, t:heŷ  

identify the year the contract was entered into? 

A. That^s my-pr^^smption. As I said, that's 

my general understanding of how they number purchase 

AEŷ STROWG s OKEY, INC, Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 



09-872/873-EL-FAC 

10 

24 

45 

^ orders, but I did not confirm each and every one to 

2 confirm that assumption, 

3 Q. But it's your general understanding it is 

^ their practice to number in the year in which it w$s 

5 entered into, correct? 

s A, Correct, 

^ Q, And if you look at this particular 

8 exhibit, isn't it true that all but three of these 

s contracts, using your presumption based upon AEP's 

practices, were entered into before 2009? 

1̂  A. Just checking, 

2̂ It appears to be the case. H ^ H H I ' 

• • j ^ ^ ^ H , the last ^^^mm^mm^miii ^̂ ^ ^̂ le 
14 

15 Q. So Other than those three agreements, all 

16 of the other ones were entered into before 2009, 

17 correct? 

1® A, It appears to be, yes. 

1̂  Q.. And these particular agreements, though, 

20 appear in your audit report because the coal was 

21 delivered during the 2009 audit period, correct? 

22 A, -Correct.— • 

23 Q. In the scope of your review you look at 

agreements that are outside of the audit period. 

25 correct, that are entered into outside of the audit 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, I N C . , Co lumbus , Ohio (614) 2 2 4 - 9 4 8 1 
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period? 

A. 

evaluation 
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Typically you wouldn't do a prudency 

of an agreement entered into outside the. 

audit period, but you would look at any agreement 

that had deliveries during the audit period. 

Q.. 

review AEP 

A.. 

Q-

Ms. Medine, are you aware that — did ybu 

Witness Rusk's testimony? 

I did. 

In Mr, Rusk's testimony does he cite two . 

of your findings in your ESP testimony? 

A.. 

Q. 

testimony 

09-817, et 

A... 

questions, 

Q. 

A.. 

Q.. 

testimony 

A. 

Q-

recommend 

I believe he did. 

I'm sorry. To clarify, it's your 

in the ESP proceeding for AEP in docket 

al.., correct? 

Yes. But if you're going to ask me 

I'd like to see a copy.. 

Sure. 

Sorry. 

MR. CLARK; May I approach the witness?.. 

EXAMINER JONES: You may approach, yes. 

Ms. Medine, do you have a copy of the 

from the ESP case with you now? 

Yes, 

On page 3 7 of your testimony did you also 

that the Commission closely scrutinize any 1 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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additional costs paid by customers resulting from 

AEP's actions from the price relief from coal 

suppliers? 

A.. Yes. 

Q, That's all I have for that document. 

Ms. Medine, on page 2-20 of your audit 

report, in the first contract under the supplier 

contract buyout provision — 

A.. Yes.. 

Q. — you talk about an affiliate coal 

supply agreement in a particular coal mine sold to 

this company, correct? 

A. Yes, 

Q„ I'm trying to be sensitive to the 

confidential nature of the record so I don't mean to 

be vague but I'll try to reduce redactions. 

I have some questions related to this 

paragraph and the history of this particular mine, if 

I could ask you-

A, Sure. 

Q, Are you aware that at one time Ohio Powier 

owned additional -affiliate mines? 

A,. Yes. 

Q.. And do you r e c a l l t h e names of t h o s e 

mines or where t h e coa l was u t i l i z e d ? 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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A., Yes, 

1 Q. Would you tell for the record? 

A, Martinka Mine provided the Mitchell 

station; the Meigs Mine provided Gavin; Windsor, I 

believe, went to Cardinal; Muskingum went to 

Muskingum River. 

Q, And does your familiarity arise- from 

doing audit reports on these particular mines while 

employed by EVA? ' ! 

A- Yes. 

Q. And were you personally involved in any 

of those audits? 

A.. Yes- \ 

Q. And, in fact, you appeared before the 

Commission as a witness in support of those audits. 

correct? 

A, When we went to hearing. 

Q, And would you agree with me that the Ohio 

Power Company affiliate mine issue has a broader 

history than just the • • [ • . contract? 

A. Absolutely. 

Q, • Can you tell me/ what is your 

recollection of the fundamental dispute associated • 

with Ohio Power's affiliate — ownership of affiliate 

mines? 
} 1 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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A. T h a t t h e c o a l p r i c e d by t h e a f f i l i a t e 

m i n e s was h i g h e r c o s t t h a n m a r k e t . 

Q.. And do you r e c a l l why, t h a t p a r t i c u l a r 

c o a l was h i g h e r t h a n m a r k e t p r i c i n g ? ' 

A. T h e r e c o u l d be — t h e r e were s e v e r a l 

t h e o r i e s . , • One t h e o r y m i g h t have" b e e n t h a t - t h e m i n e s . 

w e r e n o t o p e r a t e d ^ s • e f f i c i e n t l y a s p o s s i b l e , • 

^''Qv\'';:-MdL 'is- i t t r u e . . t h a t ' t h e - c o a i : ; - t h a t ' O h i o ' ; : ;" 

"Power-.Company re-Gei.yed; from a f f i l i a t e . - m i n e s ' w a s - " -

p r i d e d ' . - a t "cost . r a t h e r t h a n - m a r k e t ? , .It;" wa-3,,pr0vi-ded:-. ,; 

:t6".G-iistDmers. a t o p ^ t . r a t h e r , thgt t markets-correct?"--..""-. ' 

'••• A^^:v;-As^\.ydH-:des^dfibedy -it-'ha^a 'a j d h ^ liia-tdf^pr^^, 

.ctiid • t h e x ^ • w^:f § ':'B- >r̂ -̂ _ in-, theory- , i t ' wâ "̂ pricize^ba^ed";^^:- ' 

G<isl::&;:-bhaS^-therfe- w^re-^a, Bumber- q f -c:ap.s.:^along • t h e wJj^-.-

to . t;"£:y-,-to , mn:imlz;-e . th cpa t . - • •s-d-the;50--may; hav^ 'b^e^ . ; , 

:a'shott:"."p^J:iOd.:"6f- f i ;^©'where- it-^ wats ti^-d" t(5,\a-market^-.! 

•cap , r a t h e r - t&an ^ s i ^ / : " ; pe^f " $e^V bts t • !• tftinfe- evenrii^-;-• •-

t i t a t '-sc^hari-o th s re . - W^S! '$xme futuj^e- rfecjxjver^ "^ilow^d;-'^:. 

ba"S'^d. ;upoh;uhd^rr^. t^ t h a t ' mechanism...'"^•B^^ 

'aga,iii, Atheie.was muitipl'S' scenarios and multiply .'""':-•̂" 

•pricing'^ and;-it"" was 'a long process^ 

•'Q^ •'_:_ .-fed:, at''th^:'time, that Ohio- Power sold-thi^"; 

par fcieular-mine .ta thi^" corapaay,- do you-recall if 

.there .was.-any" dispute whether th-e .pri.ce-s . under tha:" 

Gontract were reasonable? 

ARMSTROtTG £ DKEY, I N C . , Columbtis , " Oh io (ei^}-:" 224"-9."48-l-
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A :fes„ There was a large dispute-

Q And was that dispute — in that dispute 

there were certain parties that believed that the 

prices were not reasonablej- correct? 

MR. lilOUKSE: Your Honor, 1 object. This 

line of cjuestioning has gone pretty far into Batters 

that aren't pertinent or relevant to this case. He*g 

already explored the general parameters of what went 

on in the early-'90s. I don't see how it bears on 

the current case-

EXAMINER JONES: Response, Mr. Clark? 

MR. CLARK; Your Honor, I think the 

matters of this particular contract are highly 

relevant to what' s happening now in the findings of 

the audit report, and there's a paragraph in here, a 

short paragraph that has more of a cursory visv of 

that, and we believe that the iJiformation I'm 

eliciting here is relevant and also provides context 

in history to this particular contract and what 

customers have paid.. 

Additionally, Ms. Medine has personal 

knowledge of this and she had a little -- if you will 

permit further questions — was the auditor and can 

testify firsthand knowledge to all of this. 

MR.. NOURSE: Your Ronor, if I could 

iiRMSTRONG & OKEY, INC. , Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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respond. Again, things were already stated in the 

audit report. He's explored them. I thinfc going 

further with this is clearly an attempt to elicit 

friendly cross-examination responses that lEU could 

have presented through their own witness had they 

wanted to do so. 

MR. CLARK: Your Honor, may I respond? ' 

EXAMINER JONES: Sure. 

MR- CLARK; We do not believe it's 

friendly cross because ultimately she is an 

Independent auditor and I'm just eliciting 

inforroation about the historical nature of the 

contract that is relevant today. 

Further, lEU is making a recommendation 

for the Commission, whereas the auditor is leaving ; 

the ultimate issue up to — leaves the ultimate iss^e 

up to the Commission's discretion. So ultimately it 

is not friendly cross because we have a 

recommendation we would like to support and the 

auditor does not. 

EXAMINER JONES: Mr. Clark, I am going to 

allow you just a little bit of leeway here, but let's 

try to wrap up this line of questioning as soon as 

possible. 

MR. CLARK: Thank you, your Honor. 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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Your Honor, I believe I might have a 

question pending. Could I have the question read 

back? 

EXAMINER JONES: Yes, you may, 

(Record read.) 

A. So in that situation there were two 

transactions. There was the sale of the mine and 

there was the coal contract. And the concern was 

that the coal price wasn't set to allow basically the 

coal company to recover the cost of the coal mine in 

the coal sales contract. 

So the issue that arose was whether the; 

coal price under the Coal Sales Agreement was a 

market price. And so we provided testimony that we 

felt the market price under the coal contract was 

within the range of market prices and that — and 

there was a following order from the Commission which 

I believe continued for a number of years where each 

year the coal price under the contract had to be 

compared to market-

Q.. In the Commission's review of that 

review, is it true the Commission did actually 

find -- strike that. 

In the Commission's review, didn't the 

Commission find via its own order that the market 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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price was lower than the contract price? Correct? 

A. I'd have to actually see the order. My. 

recollection was that they accepted the contract 

price was within the range but they were concerned 

about how that would move forward, and that's why 

they ordered an annual review of that relationship. 

MR, CLARK: May I approach the witness? 

EXAMINER JONES: Yes, you may.. 

MR. CLARK: Your Honor, no need to 

approach. Thank you, though. 

Q» Ms. Medine, were you personally involve 

in the audits of the EFC mechanism for Ohio Power in 

the early-'90s for EVA? 

A- Yes. 

Q,. And do you recall, isn't it trije that E^A 

did find in the early-'90s, particularly case 93-101, 

that the price of the coal under the contract was 

priced higher than market? 

A.. Again, if you pould provide that to me X 

would appreciate it- Do you have that document? 

MR, NOURSE: Your Honor, could I have tjtie 

question again.?., r: .. •,..::,:r. ,,,:-. 

EXAMINER JONES: Yes, you may. 

(Record read..) 

MR. NOURSE: A g a i n , I o b j e c t , your Honor . 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., CollJimbUS, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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Going pretty far down the road of exploring the 

issues in 

question. 

question. 

finished.. 

that case 15 years ago. 

MR. CLARK: Your Honor, I'll withdraw the 

EXAMINER JONES: He's withdrawing the 

Thank you. 

MR. NOURSE: Thank you. 

MR. CLARK; Your Honor, I believe I'm-

EXAMINER JONES: You're finished? 

MR. CLARK: Yes, thank you.. 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you. 

Mr. Nourse, is it appropriate to take a 

short break at this time? 

extent of 

be a half 

15-minute 

record-

MR- NOURSE: Probably so, your Honor. 

EXAMINER JONES: I don't know what the 

your cross is, but I assume it's going to 

hour or more. 

•MR.. NOURSE: Yes, for sure. 

EXAMINER JONES: Okay. Then let's take a 

break at this t-im.e. 

(Recess taken,) 

EXAMINER JONES: Let's go back on the 

Mr. Nourse, you may proceed with 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., ColumbUS, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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cross-examination. 

MR. NOURSE: Thank you/ your Honor, 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

By Mr. Nourse: 

Q. Good morning, Ms. Medine. 

A. Good morning, 

Q. I'll ask you a couple of questions about 

your background. Most of us are already familiar • 

with your background, your reputation precedes you. 

But let me ask your relative to accounting, that's 

one thing you're not, correct? You're not an 

accounting expert. 

A, Correct.. 

Q. Okay. And you're not holding yourself 

out as that or addressing accounting issues in this 

case. 

A., Larkin & Associates is providing the 

financial audit. 

Q,. Now, let me just ask you about the basic 

parameters of,this audit that you performed and 

oversaw in this case as reflected in Exhibit 1-

First of all, the FAC that the Commission approved 

for AEP-Ohio, that was taken up in the ESP cases, 

correct? 
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A. Yes. 

Q. Okay, And that was the case where the 

Commission authorized AEP to commence utilizing an 5 

FAC as of January 1st, 2009-

A. That's my understanding, 

Q, Okay. And prior to that period AEP, for 

several years prior to that, had not had a fuel 

clause as part of retail rates in Ohio, correct? 

A., That's my understanding.. 

Q. So then the basic functions, let me start 

there, the scope and the functions of this audit that 

you performed, is it fair to say there are two 

primary functions, one is the accounting verification 

financial audit and two is the prudence review of 

procurement decisions and FAC costs during the audit 

period? 

A, I think the prudence review is one 

component. I would make it a little bit broader 

saying it's generally a management/performance audit 

which includes a prudence component.. 

Q.. Okay, Is that the main component of the 

M/P audit? 

A. I guess I'd like to review the 4901, if 

you have it with you. 

Q.. 4901, I'm sorry? 
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A,. Appendix D and E to chapter 4901-1-11 of 

the Administrative Code, but basically it was 

intended to be an EFC type audit, to my 

understanding„ 

Q, Yeah- And I'm just asking your 

understanding in your own words and your own mind. 

A. I'd say prudence is one component. I 

don't know that I'd say it was the major component. 

I wouldn't divide it, but it's certainly one 

component. 

Q.. Pftiat are the other components? 

A« I think there's an intent to review the 

overall procurement activities to determine whether 

they're designed to produce reasonable costs over a 

longer period of time, would be the sort of general 

rubric of which prudence is one component. 

Q. So the fuel procurement policies and 

practices of the catnpanies-

A.. Correct-

Q.. Okay, 

A., And then there's some issues related to , 

benchmarking performance, environmental compliance.: 

Now the environmental __-- the RECs as well,. So it's 

broader than singly just the prudence of fuel 

procurement. 
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Q, Okay. Now, would you agree the initial 

audit covers the January through December 2009 

period? 

A.. That was — yes. 

Q.. Relative to the prudence review that was 

done as part of this audit report, did EVA reach aiiy 

findings of imprudence for AEP-Ohio? 

A. Correct. No. 

Q.. Now, is an audit review relative to the 

FAC or the fuel cost generally constrained to 

reviewing costs that occurred during the audit 

period? 

A. I would say yes. 

Q. And why is that? I mean, because you 

have rolling periods as you go along with an FAC. 

A,. Well, historically, obviously as you w^ll 

know, prior to the suspension of the EFC you had 

continuous annual evaluations, so there was an 

attempt to have discrete reviews so that you didn't 

two yearsout do a hindsight review of a prior 

decision that had already been reviewed, 

Q.. Yeah, I'm — go ahead. 

A. So t h i s rev iew was s l i g h t l y d i f f e r e n t i n 

t h a t t h e r e h a d n ' t been cont inuous rev iews , bu t 

n e v e r t h e l e s s t h e focus was on cos t s i n c u r r e d or not 
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incurred during the audit period which was 2009, 

Q„ Okay. But again, as a general matter 

with FAC audits and audit periods, would you agree 

that the reason that they're limited to the audit 

period is because you've got, as you go along, the 

next year is going to be the next audit and the prior 

year was the prior audit? 

A, Again, except in this case where there 

wasn't continuous audits-

Q. I'm asking you in general.. Let's — 

A.. In general, if they were continuous 

audits, you would have clearly discrete periods. 

Q. And that's normally how it works. 

A., Correct., 

Q. Okay. Now, have you been involved in > 

other cases, other jurisdictions where you got an FAC 

that's either started up or stopped? Have you been 

involved in that kind of situation before? 

A,. You mean a transition? 

Q. Yeah, 

A. Yes, i . 

Q- Where? _ ; 

A. In Nova Scot ia . 

Q.. Okay- And what was the s i t u a t i o n therQ, 

t h a t they s t a r t e d up an FAC? 
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A.. Correct . 

Q,. And was there a decision by the regulator 

to do that that authorized the FAC and set forth the 

parameters? 

A, It was a tortured decision, and I think 

their understanding of the practice was limited and 

so they — it wasn't clear they understood the 

hindsight rule philosophy, 

Q.. Okay. So with respect to a, let's say, 

experienced regulator that had dealt with an FAC and 

had some experience with that, have you been involved 

in a case like that? 

A, Well, I believe that West Virginia 

restarted their fuel clause and so we were 

involved — worked with the consumer advocate in 

three cases I believe related to the restart of their 

ENEC. 

Q. And that was done by statute? 

A,, I'm not sure. 

Q., Let me ask you a couple questions. You; 

touched on this in yovtr audit report, about the 

extraordinary events in the coal industry in 2007 abd 

2008. 

A.. Yes. 

Q, Would you agree for that time period the 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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the coal industry in the United States 

have been profound? 

A, 

Q.. 

Yes. 

Would you understand that during that 

period there were all-time high prices for coal in 

the United 

A.. 

Q-

characteri 

unique? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

described 

Q-

opinion,. 

A„ 

Q.. 

States? 

Yes.. 

So you'd agree that it's accurate to ' 

ze that period as extraordinary or highly 

I believe I did that. 

You believe you did that? 

In the report, that's similar to how I 

It.. 

Yeah, I'm just asking you in general your 

Yes. 

Now, I believe you mentioned, this has 

already been mentioned on the record, but you were a 

witness in 

A. 

Q. 

started up 

A.. 

Q-. 

the AEP-Ohio ESP cases. 

Yes- . . . . . ;•-..• 

That authorized-the^AC mechanism be i ̂  "̂  

again, correct? 

Yes. 

Okay. 
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MR. NOURSE: May I approach, your Honor? 

EXAMINER JONES: Yes, you may. 

Q, Ms, Medinef I'm going to hand you a copy, 

you can keep this during our discussion here, it's 

the confidential version of your testimony in the ESP 

cases-

A. Okay. 

Q. And I've got the public version here with 

me so I can ask you questions without getting into 

confidential data. 

Can you turn to page 24. First of all, 

let me back up- This testimony was filed by you, 

Emily S. Medine; is that correct? 

A.. Yes. 

It was not done on behalf of EVA-

No, It would have been through EVA. 

okay, I'm just looking at the front page 

here. 

A.. Typically, testimony is, you know, 

personally filed, not filed on behalf of the company. 

Q. So it was done on behalf of — through 

EVA, - " " ' . - • •_ • •• • : 

A.. Correct.. 

Q. Okay- T h a t ' s t h e same f irm t h a t ^ s doing 

t h e a u d i t h e r e . 
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A. Correct . 

Q. Let me ask you to turn to page 24, Do 

you see question and answer 47? 

A.. Yes. 

Q- You're stating, correct me if I'm 

misstating it, that you don't think coal prices were 

returned to presurge levels, meaning, I believe, 

pre-2007 levels; is that accurate? 

A.. I think I meant pre — first half of 2007 

levels-

Q. Yes.. Okay, So the good old days are 

gone, those low prices; is that what you're sayingJ 

A. I said that I didn't think we would 

return to those low levels, yes-

Q.. And do you believe it's reasonable to 

expect suppliers would continue to sell at those 

prices on a sustained basis, the pre-2007 prices? 

A. Under a contract? 

Q,. Well, you can distinguish.-

A„ If the question was would I expect 

somebody who had a contract for a low price to 

perform> the answer is yes, I would expect them to., 

Q,. And if they didn't have a contract, 

that's really what you're saying here, you don't — 

A, If they don't have a contract,^ they would 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC-, Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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sell the coal at the highest price they could get, 

and that would be based upon what the market price 

was. 

Q. And it wouldn't be, in your opinion, 

pre-2007 levels. 

A. Pre-iaid-2007 levels. 

Q. Okay, Now, earlier I believe it was 

Mr, Clark, he had.a question about this testimony on 

a statement you made on page 37, In answer 74 that 

you — 

A. Yes. 

Q, In the first part of the answer you say 

you support AEPSC's efforts in this area and concur 

that had these suppliers not received some price 

relief, filed for bankruptcy, the costs to CSP and OP 

customers would have been much greater. Do you see 

that ? 

A, Yes, 

Q- And then you end the paragraph or the 

answer by saying you recommend the Commission closely 

scrutinize this issue in the context of the 

companies' annual filings, ' 

A. Yes. • 

Q.. And t h a t ' s r e f e r r i n g t o t h e FAC 

p r o c e e d i n g s , ^ 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

contracts 

A-

Q̂  

being, to 

these — 

A.. 

Q-

business. 

A.. 

myself.. 

Q-
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Yes. 

okay. Such as this. 

Yes. 

But were you talking about future 

in that answer? 

No, 

So you're recommending what ends up 

yourself, that you closely scrutinize 

How clever -

— contracts. Yeah, it's a good 

Is that accurate? 

At the time I didn't know it was to 

Okay. And so you did scrutinize to your 

own satisfaction the contracts you wanted to review. 

correct? 

A- • My recollection is that this primarily 

was focused on the^^^^Bissue. I don't recall at 

that time 

agreement. 

on with H 

necessarily being aware of the settlement 

and I was somewhat aware of what was going 

^^^nnd, obviously, those costs were 

fairly significant and that was the concern.. 

Q. But regardless, you didn^t — your 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC. , ColumbUS, O h i o (614) 2 2 4 - 9 4 8 1 
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recommendation there wasn't s p e c i f i c t o 

was i t ? 

I would be more specific if-I knew it was 

Okay. Now, relative to the ESP cases, do 

you recall your recommendations in your testimony in 

that case? 

A- If you can direct me to it. 

Q. I'm just asking you a general question,, 

A. Not specifically. 

Q. Okay, Did you propose to offset FAC 

costs with off-system sales margins? 

A- Could you direct me to where you're 

focused? 

Q. I'm just asking. You don't recall — 

A. I would like to read through it. It's : 

been two years.. 

. Q. Feel free to take your time. 

A, I don't see anything, but,.. 

Q. Do you recall that OCC's position — 

whether OCC's position in the ESP cases advocated an 

off-system sales offset? 

J A. I don't specifically recall. 
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Q,. Do you recall whether OCC's position 

regarding the FAC in the ESP cases opposed the 

weighted average carrying costs for deferred fuel 

costs? 

A. I recall something more specifically 

about that.. 

Q. Okay, What was your position on that 

issue? 

A.. I was still optimistic that there 

actually might not be an underrecovery so I was more 

concerned that the company — with the benefit of the 

underrecovery or the overrecovery through the 

interest calculated-on that. That's the — 

Q.. Okay. Do you recall whether OCC's 

position regarding the FAC in the ESP cases was to 

use the 2008 baseline for fuel costs in implementing 

the FAC going forward? 

A. I believe there was some issue about what 

the baseline was but I don't believe it was covered 

in my testimony-

Q. Okay. You were OCC's FAC witness in the 

ESP case, right? - - - —.-

A- I was not the only OCC witness. There 

was another OCC witness that dealt more specifically 

with the baseline issues. 
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Q. And did you confer? I mean, were you 

involved with OCC's positions in the ESP case 

regarding the FAC? 

A. Baseline? 

Q. Beyond your testimony at all. 

A.. There may have been some discussions, but 

there was another witness, I think her name was Leel 

Smith, who actually provided testimony on that. We 

work for different companies,.so we may have had some 

discussions, but it wasn't the scope of my testimony. 

Q. And that's not something you got involved 

with any discussions with OCC about? 

A- No, I was probably tangentially involved 

in some discussions but it was not part of my scope.. 

And I think my testimony reflects what was in my 

scope. 

Q- Okay, But you were part of the — you 

were part of the FAC team for the cases, correct? 

A„ I was — 

MR. IDZKOWSKI: I'm going to object. Can 

counsel — counsel's asking questions at_length about 

another case that's related to this case tangentially 

but, you know, I don't know how we're going to go in 

this direction and discuss this witness' discussions, 

testimony for another — in another case for another 
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party.. She's here to be, I believe, questioned about 

this audit report. 

MR. NOURSE: Your Honor, this case is 

closely related to the ESP cases, and Ms- Medine is 

the auditor in this case, and I'm exploring how her 

position in the ESP cases relates — as a consumer , 

advocate relates to the position as the independent 

auditor in this case. 

MR.. IDZKOWSKI: I'm going to object, She 

was hired as, I believe — I wasn't the one that 

hired her, but I believe she testified in that case. 

She's been characterized here as a consumer advocate. 

She was hired as a consultant, I believe, and 

testified in that ESP case as a consultant. 

MR, NOURSE: Your Honor, I don't think 

it's appropriate for Mr, Idzkowski to testify here. 

He hasn't been sworn in, but that's the purpose of my 

questions.. 

EXAMINER JONES: Mr.. Nourse, I'm going to 

give you just little more leeway, but please wrap 

this up and let's move on, piease-

Q. (By Mr. Nourse^ Ms. Medine, we can try |to' 

short-circuit this. Would you agree that the OCC's: 

positions in the ESP cases regarding the FAC which 

was proposed, all three of those that I just 
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mentioned, would have the effect, if adopted, of 

reducing the projected underrecovery at the end of 

the ESP? 

A. I'll perhaps answer it differently. Î  

did not — all I did was provide my input to OCC. I 

was not involved or responsible for their positions 

on issues that were not part of my scope. So the 

answer is I didn't evaluate that, and I'm not even 

sure exactly what OCC's positions were on those 

particular issues. 

Q. Okay, Do you understand v^at the FAC 

baseline was that was established in the ESP cases? 

A. I did. I don't recall it specifically at 

this point-

Q. You say you did understand it at the 

time? 

A. I believe there was a debate as to 

whether — how it was going to b^ set and I believe 

there was an agreement reached as to how it would be 

set, but if you asked me today on the stand exactly 

what that agreement was, I could not answer it, 

Q. Okay". And that was not an — an 

understanding of that was not necessary to do your 

audit or raise the issues you raised? 

A.. I do not believe so. , 
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Q- Okay- Let me ask you to turn to page 

2-11 of the audit report. Item E there is what 

you're recommending for the manual — 

A.. Yes-

Q- — relating to physical and financial 

hedges. 

A, Correct. 

Q. Are you asking.AEP to propose a policy^ 

propose something that would be approved by the 

Commission, or, to do something unilaterally 

regarding physical and financial hedges? 

A. Well, AEP, physical hedges are simply 

coal contracts, so a financial hedge. 

Q. Yeah-

A. I assume they have a policy already. A 

financial hedge is an area that continues to be 

somewhat uncertain as to what utilities should use^ 

and so I had discussions with Mr-, Henry about that/-

and I think everybody is concerned that if there is a 

policy to use financial hedges, that it be a policy 

that would allow cost recovery. 

So I think that there's a little bit o t 

back and forth as to who goes first in terms of 

proposing it or not proposing it, but I believe the 

company would like regulatory approval of the costs! 
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associated with financial hedges before using them in 

any significant way. 

Q. What's your understanding of the purpose 

of financial hedges in this context? Is it to lower 

prices or to simply stabilize them? 

A., I think the primary purpose is to reduce 

the volatility. There may be a secondary purpose 

using" them to minimize fuel costs by using what I 

would call well-timed hedging., But again, there's 

always risk. 

Q, There's risk of a loss? 

A. Yes, 

Q. And that's part of the cost recovery that 

you're talking about, 

A.. Yes. 

Q: So if financial hedging were undertaken 

in a prudent manner and a loss was incurred, those 

losses or that loss would be passed through the FAC? 

A.. I think that is what the company would i 

like to do before it erobarks upon using financial 

hedges for coal procurement. 

Q.. We'd like to incur a loss? 

A,. No. You would like to be able to have ̂ a 

policy that would allow cost recovery if, in fact, 

you did incur a loss„ > 
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Q.. And are you recommending that such a 

policy be undertaken with the potential for losses to 

foe incurred without any guidance on that? 

A.. No. Could you rephrase your question? 

Q. Yeah. I'm just asking you whether you 

said the company would like to have guidance on that, 

and the company^s concerned about losses, and the 

question is whether your recommendation is to proceed 

doing financial hedges that could, even if 

implemented in a prudent manner, result in losses. 

Are you suggesting that be done without any 

Commission guidance as to the cost recovery? 

A. No, I'm recommending that the company 

develop a policy that could be submitted for 

approval.. 

Q,. Okay, Turning to page 2-23 in the audit 

report, you state after the bullet points in that 

paragraph, that if the supplier were "forced into 

bankruptcy, below market contracts would most surely 

be rejected which would require AEP to pay a 'market 

price' for the same coal," ; 

A. Yes. 

Q. So in your experience is that the outcome 

of a — when a supplier files bankruptcy, it has a 

below-market contract, they would get out of that 
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contract? 

A. Yes, That's my experience. 

Q. And the fact is the coal contracts are 

executory contracts; would you agree? 

A.. That's been my experience.. 

Q. And what does that mean, executory 

contract? Can you explain? 

A. From a practitioner's point of view as 

opposed to a legal point of view? 

Q, Yes-

A. That means if a company files for 

bankruptcy, they have the right to reject the 

contract and not perform. 

Q. Okay.. But in general the coal contracts 

being executory in nature and when market prices 

dramatically change relative to the cost of producing 

coal, you would agree that becomes a challenge to 

enforce contracts and get suppliers to actually 

deliver coal? 

A. I think it depends who your counterpart 

is and what their portfolio, of ̂contracts are. _ _ I 

Q.. Let me ask you to turn to page 34 of your 

ESP testimony. Do you still have it up there? 

A. I do. I already have it on that page.. 

Q» Good. I think that's where we left off. 
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And do you see the statement that says, 

referring at that time to the prior year, being 

'7 and '8, "pricing was extremely volatile making it 

difficult to get coal producers to hold their price 

even once it was offered- As difficult as buying 

coal has been, what's been even more difficult is 

contract performance" — 

A, Yes, 

Q. — correct? Now, you didn't make that 

statement relative to the counterparty risk or 

portfolio; that was a general statement, correct? 

A. Correct-

Q. Okay. And you still agree with that 

statement? 

A. Yes, as a general statement I agree, 

Q. Okay, Now, we talked a couple times 

today about doing a prudence review for coal supply 

agreements. Can you describe what you mean when you 

say "a prudence review"? What's involved, what st^ps 

or what review, what issues are involved? 

A. On a specific agreement what you would be 

looking for is that the terms of the contract werei ' 

obtained through a competitive procurement, at some 

level, an arm's length transaction.. And that the 

economics of the procurement were superior to your 

ARMSTRONG £ OKEY, INC, Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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alternatives and that the terms of the procurement 

were consistent with your procurement strategy^ 

Q, What do you do to make those 

determinations? 

A. Well, with respect to whether the 

procurement was through a competitive procurement, 

you review the request for proposal. The results of 

the analysis, the economic analysis, will generally 

focus on the delivered — on a cost analysis but it 

would be adjusted for cpiality-

But you would also look to see how you 

consider the noneconomic factors, such as 

counterparty risks, coal quality, delivery issues, 

whatever other issues that might be relevant in the 

procurement, how it affects your overall portfolio 

strategy. 

The third part would deal with the fact 

that you wouldn't want, to buy more coal, for example, 

than you actually need so that you've actually a 

portfolio strategy that allows for, it minimizes 

market exposure at any one time, provides some 

certainty of supply and provides for coal quality 

that meets your requirements. 

Q.. Does that cover the general process 

that — 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC, Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 



09-872/873-EL-FAC 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A.. 

Q. 

testimony 

The process. 

Okay, Now, as I understand your 

— let me first back up and try to ask 

a terminology question here so we can, again, tr̂ i 

keep this record as public as possible. When I r 

to the January 2008 settlement agreement, do you 

what I'm 

A. 

Q-

referring to? 

Yes, I do. 

And that could also be referred to as 

buyout agreement. 

A.. 

Q-

November 

Yes. 

Okay. And when I refer to the 

77 

you 

to 

efer 

know 

the 

2008 settlement agreement, do you know what 

I'm talking about there? 

A-

Q-

2008 the 

supplier, 

relative 

A-

about. 

Q-

A. 

Q-

No. 

This is the agreement that at the end 

companies reached an agreement with the 

that was involved in the January 200B 

to .shortfall and deliveries. 

Yes. Now I know what you're talking 

Damages for that breach. 

Yes. 

Okay. That's the November 2008 

settlement agreement-

of 

same 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, I N C , Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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If I refer to the 2008 production bonus 

agreement, would that be the same agreement that was 

mentioned at the bottom of page 2-22 and carrying 

over to the top of page 2-24 — 

A. That's — 

Q. — of the audit report? And the fourth 

agreement is the 2008 production bonus — I'm sorry>-

that's the one I just mentioned. 

The fourth is the 2008 contract support 

agreement which is, I'm sorry, it's page 2-24-

A. Okay. 

Okay. 

That's a challenge but we'll try. 

We'll try- It will just make it easier 

later 

Now, back to the discussion we were just 

having with the prudence review, it's my 

understanding that you did not conduct a prudence 

review of the January 2008 settlement agreement; is: 

that accurate? 

A. Correct. 

Q,. And it's also my understanding that you 

did not conduct a prudence review of the 

November 2008 settlement agreement; is that correct? 

A„ Correct. . 
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Q. And is it also correct you did not 

conduct a prudence review of the 2008 production 

bonus agreement? 

A. Correct, Other than I would say that I 

reviewed the coxKpanies' documents related to the 

production — the bonus payment, what did you call 

it? — production bonus agreement as well as the 

fifth agreement, which you didn't reference in their 

totality. 

Q.. What's the fifth agreement? General 

terms ? 

A. Would be the per-ton increase in contract 

prices for 2009. 

Q.. Okay. And that's part of the, what I 

called the 200B — 

A- Production, 

Q,, — production bonus. 

A, Fair enough. So I would say that I 

reviewed those documents and we conducted quite a bit 

of discussion about that-

Q. Does that same statement apply to the : 

2008 contract support that's on 2-24 of the audit 

report? 

A. Yes. I reviewed all those documents and 

had quite a bit of discussion abqut that. 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC, Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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Q. Yeah, okay. Thank you. 

I want to — 

A. I think just to make — perhaps.a 

distinction is that with respect to the January 2008 

agreement, I didn't go back and make any judgment as 

to whether I thought it was a reasonable deal at the 

time it was done in terms of the numbers or the 

dollars, and that would be the difference. 

Q. And that's a fair way to describe a 

prudence review; is it not? 

A, Correct. 

Q. Okay. I want to have a general 

discussion with you about coal contract buyouts. 

A- Sure-

Q- Is it fair to say that a coal contract : 

buyout typically involves reducing the term of the 

contract, early termination? 

A- If it's a buyout as opposed to 

renegotiation, yes. 

Q.. Yeah. Now,, is it possible that a 

contract — that you could andit a contract and fincSi 

that the company was imprudent for not negotiating a 

buyout of a contract? Have you ever done that? 

A.. Generally buyouts have to be consensual^ 
1 

so I'm not sure I can find somebody imprudent for npt 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC, Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 



09-872/873-EL-FAC 

81 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

doing something that would require consent on the 

other party's side. I don't recall that particular-

scenario, 

Q.. But for not pursuing a buyout. 

A. Again, I think it's very situational so I 

can't say generally anything one way or the other. 

Q.. Okay. But let me just try to 

distinguish. If there's a buyout that occurs and you 

have an audit period that you review that you're 

reviewing it to see if the buyout agreement that was 

reached by both parties was prudent by the company, 

by the utility, correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And what I'm asking i s i f i t ' s possible 

t h a t you would look a t a s i t u a t i o n and conclude t h a t 

the company should have pursued a buyout of a 

p a r t i c u l a r cont rac t and i t was imprudent t o not 

pursue t h a t . 

A- I understand what you ' re saying and I'm 

j u s t saying i f you have a — since a buyout i s 

consensual, you know, I think — l e t me rephrase i t J 

I th ink u t i l i t i e s should always ac t ive ly 

manage t h e i r contract po r t fo l io , so t o the extent 

t h a t they f a i l t o do tha t , I have i s s u e s . Whether i t 

r i s e s ^to the l eve l of prudence or imprudence, I c an ' t 
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say I feel strongly, and I think it says in the 

report that a responsible procurement department 

actively manages its contracts. If there's benefits 

from buying it out or renegotiating a contract, they 

should pursue them. 

Q. The party that pursues a contract would 

typically be the party that ends up paying something 

to get that; is that fair? 

A- No, that's not — no. For example,.! 

have clients that buy coal that I think has higher 

value than where it's going, and so I say go to theija 

and see if they want to do a trade or they want to 

buy the coal back from you. So I don't think it's 

fair to say one way or the other. 

Q. Well, that's a good clarification. When 

I said the party would pay, I didn't necessarily mean 

that they would have to be the only one to write a 

check for the settlement, but they would give, up 

something in order to achieve a buyout,. 

A.. Again, I would give you the example where 

coal is being bought, let's say it's coal that could 

be used in the metallurgical coal market and it's 

going into the steam account, and coal prices rise.• 

I would say go to the company and see if they want to 

buy back the tons because we can replace them 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC, Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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cheaper. I'm not sure what they're giving up. 

They're giving up coal they can use and they're going 

to get a check, so,,, 

Q.. So that may be a situation where it's 

either mutually beneficial or mutually neutral for 

the parties to negotiate a buyout, 

A. My experience is that all buyouts are 

commercially valuable to both sides or they wouldn't 

do it. 

Q.. Yeah. Well, or at least neutral. I 

mean, aren't you saying in that situation that the 

supplier, that the customer doesn't have any problem 

with switching out so it's no — 

A.. But I would, in that case I would expect 

those additional dollars to flow through the fuel 

account. It's better for — their job is to minimize 

fuel costs, and if there's a way to actively manage; 

their procurements so that it reduces their fuel 

costs, they should try. 

Q.. And I understand that. I'm not dealing 

with the FAC at all right now, I'm just as icing you dn 

your experience in the coal 'industry in contracts, • 

negotiations, et cetera, 

So typically, then, when there's a 

buyout, though, that either changes the tons of 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC, ColumbUS, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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changes the terms, typically there would be a 

shortfall created from that buyout; is that true? 

A.. If you needed the coal. 

Q.. Right,. So it's a shortfall of what you 

would have been delivered, some or all of which you 

may not have needed.. 

A.. Correct. 

Q„ Okay.. Now, let me ask you to turn to 

page 2-20 of the audit report.. This is in connection 

with the 2008 settlement, January 2008 settlement 

agreement.. You're reviewing some of the history with 

this 20-year contract and you say there have been 

this comparison during part of the period — the 

history of this contract, the contract price versus 

market price,, correct? 

A. I said I believe that that continued, 

yes. 

Q. That was your understanding- Now, what.: 

would have happened — well, first of all, is it 

typical for let's just say a long-term contract 

regardless of whether it's 20 years, 10, 15, 5, is it 

typical for — in an FAC context for an auditor, t o i 

a commission to review that contract when it's been 

entered into during the audit period? 

A. No. 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC, Coiumbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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Q. Is that typical? 

A.. No. 

Q, Maybe I didn't state that correctly.. Is 

it -

A.. Yes. 

Q. Maybe this is the question — let me try 

again. This is the question you would say no to, not 

that I'm leading you: If a long-term contract was 

previously reviewed by an auditor and previously 

entered into in years gone by, it would not be 

typically revisited in a subsequent audit period 

several years later, would it? 

A, Yes. 

Q, Right. I changed the question- Yes, 

okay. 

Now, what would have happened in this, 

the one you're discussing here, the 20-year 

agreement, in your opinion what would have happened 

if the Commission had decided back in the '90s 

sometime that, hey, this price is no longer 

competitive; it's above market? What would be the ; 

EFC at that time, the electric fuel clause case, 

impact of that? 

A. I would have to go back to the order and 

see exactly how it was phrased. 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, I N C , Coliambus, Ohio (614) 2 2 4 - 9 4 8 1 
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Q.. No, I'm not saying it actually happened. 

I'm saying it was being reviewed as you've said here, 

and I'm asking in your experience what happens if 

during the term of the long-terra contract subsequent 

to initial review, sometime during the middle or the 

end of the term, that there's a finding that, hey, I 

this is no longer a competitive contract; v̂ hat would 

you do about it as an auditor if you were in that 

situation? 

A. So not this specific contract. 

Q„ Well, yeah, let's just say in general. 

A. Because I think this specific contract 

might have had some additional language in the order-

so that's why. 

Q.. Highly unique, 

A. I think it was, as we just discussed, it 

was not typical.. You would have the annual review, 

and I don't remember what the Commission provided for 

as their rights.. 

So the answer is, in general, utilities 

buy coal in a portfolio strategy in which some of tlhe. 

contracts ended up being below market and some of the 

contracts ended up being above market, and you 

typically don't do your analysis based on a single 

contract. You're looking at the strategy ,overall. 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC,, ColtimbUS, Ohio (-614) 224-9481 
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Similarly, coal producers sell coal in a 

portfolio, and so they'll have very, very profitable 

contracts and they'll have contracts that aren't 

profitable.. Clearly, overall, if they're making them 

stay in business and if all of them end up being 

unprofitable, they'll end up going bankrupt-

Q, And let's just leave aside affiliate 

mining and all those issues for a moment here and Say 

if there was a long-term contract, it was procured by 

competitive bidding and it was fully deemed to be a 

market-coit^etitive, prudent contract at the time it 

was entered into, would it be fair five years later 

or sometime during that term for a commission to come 

back and say, you know what, market prices have taken 

a dive, so this is just not competitive anymore and 

we're going to disallow the portion that goes above 

market. Would that be fair? 

A, I've never seen that done in a regulatory 

setting.. 

Q- Okay, Let me ask you to turn to page 1-5 

of the audit report,, in recommendation or major 

finding No. 2_,. it starts off saying, "As predicted :by 

AEP, at the end of the first year of the FAC there ;is 

a large under-recovery.." 

A. Yes. 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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Q; All right. Now, is it fair to say that 

the underrecovery, regardless of whatever moving 

parts in the FAC that you might try to.line up with 

the underrecovery, is the ultimate reason for the 

underrecovery the fact that the Commission approved a, 

phase-in plan with deferrals of fuel cost for 

AEP-Ohio? 

A,. Yes. 

Q,. Now, oh the same page, let's see here, 

you've got a statement in the fourth sentence, I 

believe, "The decision to increase the contract 

price" --

A.. Yes. 

Q. Okay. Then it goes on to say resulted in 

an increase in the 2009 fuel expense over the 

contracted prices. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. Now, with this January 2008 

settlement agreement, is it fair to say there were 

two components to it? One would be what I call the: 

buyout and one would be the future purchase or . : 

filling the open position created by the buyout. 

A.. There was replacement for a small portion 

of the tons, yes.. 

Q, FO|: a portion of the tons, okay. Now, I 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC, Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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^ guess when you say this was a result of an increase, 

2 okay, that's what I want to talk about. The increase 

3 you're referring to is comparing to the old price of 

^ the old contract that was terminated, correct? 

5 A. Yes. 

6 Q. Okay. Now, was it your opinion, did you 

7 review whether or not you thought, or viewed back at 

s that time in January 2008 whether that contract was 

3 sustainable? 

A.. I'm not sure what you mean by 

11 "sustainable." 

12 Q., Well, I guess what I'm asking you is the 

13 result — when you say this negotiation resulted in 

1̂  an increase, that assumes that the contract, the 

15 prior contract with the lower, would have not only ' 

16 been in effect throughout the ESP period, but also 

1̂  the deliveries would have been made by the supplier; 

19 is that correct? 

19' ' A,. Yes.. 

Q,. Did you examine — well, let me ask you 

this: I think you recognized, correct me if I'm 

22 wrong, but later in the audit report this particular 

23 supplier we're talking about here had financial i 

24 difficulties at the time. 

25 A. I don't believe so. 

20 

21 
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Q, Okay, I'm talking about the — okay. 

I'm sorry. That's a later question-

Was it your understanding that that 

supplier had raised a legal claim as to the viability 

of that contract? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And whether or not that claim could havd 

been pursued or litigated .would have had a bearing on 

whether the contract would continue to exist; is that 

correct? 

A. No, I think that the claim — I 

shouldn't say that. It's a legal discussion. My 

personal opinion was it was a relatively weak claim,| 

but I didn't review it, and I think I saw it — I 

think, as always, litigation is always risky. 

Q. And would you agree it's pretty difficult 

to go back and try to assess that, sitting here 

today, the viability of the legal claim? 

A. I think that, again, I didn't conduct a 

prudence review, so I would think that at some point 

if one wanted to conduct a prudence review, it 

could — one could opine on the strength of the legal 

point. 

Q.. Yeah. And you didn't evaluate the legal 

point, nor are you holding yourself out as an legal 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC, ColumbUS, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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expert, correct? 

MR. IDZKOWSKI: Objection. 

A., I'm not holdihg myself out — 

EXAMINER JONES: Overruled., 

"THE WITNESS: I'm sorry.., 

EXAMMER JONES: Go ahead. .You iiiay • 

answer. ' : . ' " •. 

Tte WITNESS:.;- X^'^ sorry:. ' i;:"^; "sa^ingV^-'. 

t h a t . I , d idn / t "dp. t h e ; p r u d e n c e ' r e ^ • • ' ? f i ^ - '-'••:>'• •• •:/.-• 

QDuriterpaity'.was"' a ' . k | ^H^H^ | -CQa l . ' produd0r.-'.;whiiehv,.. 

splcf̂ ":yi3>p:,, fcriowf- u p ^ r ^ - ' - o f •••(̂  

o f ' h i ^ -.d;pî i" £?iri><to^tiQn-, gtri^'•&i^" was :a^>^|£tti^S:|f 

sma l l jj-art of. t he i r - por fe fo i .S . •v^-;:;-.:'v:;vvO~;-y:V-;;:;.:-;;; 

y/A.- Xn .<^dditiG>a/-''tfie^^had,' ydu;ic^i|#^;:;aS^ 

:th^t- time^.-tpey, ra"±sed,that"^iisueiF ;they'||3Ld;vS^uri^M 

fh#" a s . ^ f t ^ : i h t o . - a n o t ^ coii^a^y-y^t r0^4;ini^::-;^oiti^ , i.-'y 

• i^gal /Q^ii^^M'^^^- so: th^y\&^<^- a;dditionai^"'"i:i^^ 

"tx-y^ t:cX;3'ust'fdtg^ ; t hS . t ' o^ •• Sb:^^I"i;h;i.ni^^-St5s^--€' 

l a t t i e •more^ compl i ca t^^ ccmpilclat^Mv tft̂ t̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂  

".simply-;c?p;ining:^ aSidut t haL t ' l ^ga l .st.^a,tegy:r:, 'i. ,•/-:•'''•''• \\-: . 

^ t h i n i i t h e p o i n t i s . t4at/tH#;-,\'. •;"•;••-̂  

c<5Udteipa^ty with . t h e - o b l i g a t i o n was •̂ . JZ/j/jj^:-

"company:. This 'was'-'a' •••MBliiBHHHJi-:. ' : ' . ' . 

•Qf . t h e i r por t fo l io- ) ; • aiid," i t . ' would:^be .̂• un l i ke ly : : 

i\RDfSTRON,G-£ OKEY,: INC,. Columbus, - Ohio."(•§14.)---•224-^451 • -̂  
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they would have defaulted on perfontLance.. 

Q, Well, again, I was ndstaken in raising 

financial difficulty on this particular agreement,. 

This was about their legal claim, not financial 

difficulties, correct? 

A Correct. I just didn't want to leave the 

impression that if there hadn't been relief, that 

they would have stopped performing, 

Q. Well, they wouldn't have stopped 

performing for financial reasons, 

A, Correct.. 

Q And you d i d n ' t examine the l ega l claims-

I s t ha t a lso t rue? 

A. Correct., 

Q. Okay.. 

A. I shouldn^t say that. I read some 

information about the legal clain. I didn't examine 

it in detail. 

Q. Now, at the top of page 1-5, I guess it's 

carrying over from 1-4, you make a statement that 

many of AEP's suppliers are willing to defer 

shipments at no cost. 

A, Yes.. 

Q And t h a t r e s u l t would have saved FAC 

ratepayers money i n 2T)D^7~Xs tha t accurate? 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC-, .Coluntbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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1 A. I don't believe I said that part. 

2 Q. I'm asking the question. 

^ A- I guess my point is it's a give and take, 

^ so there may be times where AEP is less than rigorous 

5 about enforcement, and in exchange they are able to 

s do some these, you know, negotiations on deferrals. ^ 

^ I think it's — I think the idea is it's generally • 

® neutral.. If you look through, for example, the 

^ contract summaries, you can see many times that, you 

10 know, people weren't in compliance with certain 

11 contract terms, and I think it's part of give and 

12 take. 

1̂  Q. Well, was your statement at the bottom of 

14 4 that AEP did an outstanding job managing its excess 

1̂  volumes, was that a neutral statement? \ 

1^ A.. No; I was positive. 

^̂  Q, Okay. So you're not willing to agree 

15 that the fact that we did defer shipments at no cost 

1^ would have saved any money looking at that issue 

20 alone? 

21 A.. If you look at that issue alone, it wou^d 

22 potentially save money.' 

2^ Q. Okay. Let me ask you a couple questiona 

24 about the November 2008 shortfall settlement.. 

25 A. Okay.. - -

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC, Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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Q. This is dealt with in part on page 2-21 

of the audit report. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Now, let me check my notes here. I 

believe — well, let me just ask you, and you may 

have addressed this earlier. This was really a 

separate agreement from the January 2008 settlement 

agreement and related to a.subsequently developed 

issue of failure to deliver.coal in 2008. 

A.. Correct.. 

Q., Is that correct? 

A,. That is my understanding, 

Q.. So, in other words, even though the 

January 2008 settlement agreement terminated, that 

contract, effective at the end of '08, as it turned 

out, -he supplier didn't deliver all the tons they 

were obligated to do under the remainder of the ! 

agreement. . 

A„ Clearly they found a more valuable market 

for that coal. 

Q. Okay. And the settlement agreement 

associated with that nonperformance by the supplier/ 

do you have an understanding of how the dollar amourit 

reached in that settlement was calculated? ' 

A. I know the total dollars,, and I simply 

ARMSTRONG & OPCEY, I N C , Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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divided tons into that to come up with a per ton for 

the amount. I don't know how it was calculated other 

than that, other than it was a settlement agreement* 

Q.. Well, in your opinion would the amount, 

the settlement dollar amount, have covered or roughly 

covered procurement of the shortfall and market 

prices? 

A. In November 2008? My guess is it would 

have exceeded the cost of replacing that coal. 

Q., Can you tell me how you're defining the 

cost of replacing the coal in that context? 

A,. If they failed to deliver coal in the 

fourth quarter, then you would buy coal — if you 

needed the coal, you would buy the coal and -- at 

market prices, and the difference would be, I 

presume — again, I don't know. I did not look at 

it, so I'm just opining how you would generally do 

it. But if you're paying $47, over $47 a ton not to 

deliver coal, either two things happen. One is the 

cost of replacement was very expensive, or the second 

is that the market value was very high and it was a' 

negotiated number * 

Q.. And this was in 2008, correct? 

A.. At the end of 2008 when the settlement 

agreement was reached, ̂  

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, I N C , Coluiubus , Ohio (614) 2 2 4 - 9 4 8 1 
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Q. Okay. 

A. So it could have been either. 

Q. Do you think, well, again, you're saying 

you really don't know — 

A,., I don't know. 

Q.. — what spot coal Ohio Power purchased ^n 

'08 that might have covered that position? 

A.. Correct. 

1 Q, Or the cost of that spot coal. 

A. Correct. 

Q. Okay. But it is fair to assume that th^ 

dollars flowing from that settlement would generally 

be offset by some cost of replacement coal? 

A.. Correct,. 

Q. And it would relate to 2008 purchases. 

A.. Again, the coal, you know, going — I 

don't recall the exact timing, but presumably it went 

on the pile and flowed through in fuel costs. 

• Q.. They would relate to the shortfall that 

. was supposed to be delivered in 200B, correct? 

A. Correct. I just don't know when that 

2008 coal would have been burned. 

Q.. You don't know, okay. 

A.. I don't know. 

, MR.. NOURSE: Your Honor, I have some more 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, I N C , Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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1 questions. This might be a good time to break, I'm 

2 not going to be able to finish in ten minutes. , You 

3 said 1:00 o'clock I believe. 

^ EXAMINER JONES: Yes, I did.. Mr„ Nourse, 

5 do you have any estimation at this time of how much-

6 more you will have? 

"̂  MR. NOURSE: Probably another half hour. 

s EXAMINER JONES: Okay.. My understanding, 

^ based upon the prehearing conference, was that AEP 

then was going to go next and present their 

11 witnesses; is that correct? 

12 MR, NOURSE: Yes,. 

13 EXAMINER JONES: And who will be your 

1^ first witness this afternoon? 

1^ MR. NOURSE; Mr. Dooley. We plan to 

1^ present Mr., Dooley, Mr. Rusk, Mr. Nelson, 

1̂  Ms. Simmons.. 

IS EXAMINER JONES: In that order? 

1^ MR, NOURSE: In that order.' 

20 EXAMINER JONES: Thank you. With that we 

21 will be adjourned for lunch until 2:00 p.m.. 

22 (At 12:50 p.m. a lunch recess was taken 

23 u n t i l 2 : 0 0 p . m . ) 

24 

25 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, I N C , Co lumbus , Oh io (614) 2 2 4 - 9 4 8 1 
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1 Monday Af ternoon Session 

August 2 3 , 2010. 

EXAMINER JONES: L e t ' s go back on t h e 

r e c o r d . 

Mr. Nourse, you may c o n t i n u e wi th your 

c r o s s - e x a m i n a t i o n . 

MR. NOURSE: Thank you, your Honor. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION [Continued) ^ 

By Mr, Hourse: 

Q,. Ms. Medine, can you t u r n t o 2-24 of t h e ; 

a u d i t r epo r t» 

A,. Yes. 

Q.. Now, h e r e y o u ' r e d i s c u s s i n g t h i s 2008 

c o n t r a c t suppor t i t em — 

A.. Yes. 

Q. — t h a t we b r i e f l y touched on e a r l i e r . 

And I b e l i e v e i n your d i r e c t when you were adopt ing 

t h e a u d i t r e p o r t , you made c o r r e c t i o n s h e r e , c o r r e c t ? 

A.. Yes. 

Q,. Now, i n one of t h e — have you reviewed ' 

t h e d i s cove ry i n t h i s case t h a t ' s been exchanged 

among t h e p a r t i e s ? 

A. Excuse me, a r e you r e f e r r i n g t o t h e lEU 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, I N C , Coluit ibus, Ohio (€14) 2 2 4 - 9 4 8 1 
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additional discovery? 

Q. In this case I'm referring to lEU. This 

was interrogatory 13 that addresses this same 

agreement and essentially corrects or clarifies some 

of the statements in the audit report. 

A- Yes, I have reviewed it. I just would 

like — 

Q.. Do you have it? I'm sorry„ 

A,. I would just like to say two things. Oiie 

is that the audit report was provided to the company 

to give them an opportunity before we finalized it to 

make any corrections, and that information was not 

provided at that time. 

Q.. Yeah.. 

A.. And the second thing is, as I noted 

earlier, that the. justification memorandum had 

different numbers than now what is represented or 

what is truly in the coal contract. 

Q, That's fine.. .All I really wanted to ask 

you about that is whether the interrogatory 13 

response of the companies reflects your understanding 

of that agreement accurately,. 

A.. It reflects my current understanding of ; 

the agreement, yes,. 

Q, Okay. Now, do you know, as part of this 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC, ColumbUS, Ohlo (614) 224-9481: 
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agreement we were just speaking of there was an add^r 

or an escalated price for the first — a certain 

portion of tons delivered in 2009, correct? 

A., Yes.. 

Q.. • Okay. With that additional adder, is it 

your understanding that the price paid in 2009 to 

this supplier for coal was a market competitive 

price? 

A.. Yes, I believe it was. 

Q. Now, part of the aspect of this agreemeijit 

includes an option for a discounted price starting in 

2013; is that your understanding? 

A, Yes. 

Q-. So for those tons at that price starting 

in 2013, the company's not obligated as we sit here: 

today to buy those tons at that price. 

A. No, it's an option price, 

Q,, Okay. I just wanted to clarify. Thank 

you. 

So it's possible that the discounted . 

price under that option might end up being above 

market at that time, isn't it? 

A. I would hope not,. The price is intended 

to be $4,93 per ton below market. 

Q. I understand. But I asked you if it was 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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1 I possible. 

2 A. I just wanted to check in the contract, 

3 and maybe you can p o i n t me t o t h e r i g h t p l a c e where 

^ [. ± t t a l k s a b o u t when t h e p r i e s i s n e g o t i a t e d . . 

s ; Q,. i^m s o r r y , I d i d n ' t h e a r your a n s w e r . 

A, I ' m wondeirihg when t h e p r i c e is.-. 

'̂ . • n e g o t i a t e d " f o r ^the- p g t i p r i . p e t i o d / b e G a u s e - t h e only- w^y .' , 

5^;:•^th#:••pri•ce^wouid^M o r ' abpv^:; 33:j^rketiVJol|M; >"•• 

P : ' : b e t h a t t h e g)rice;. was/'^n:^^ a pericpd; ^ n d t h ^ "̂ y-;:" 

m a r k e t chaiigied';sul3Sfei^ent> t o n e g o t i ^ a t i p h ' ;of th^-;.";. 

I l l , " p p l ^ ^ . - ^ • : : , , o ' \ / -^^''r/^-. : \ y - ^ . ' ' • • ' ' " • ' - • • - / : • • • • • • ^ ' '^•• '••••: 

14\y •4pg>iy^; "tfee'iir:i:ci&f i-la contra f̂;.ms^^ gt^iM^'-f0'i:-:.::,:. 

ife ;; :^^tar t i i5^; : i : | i : j 0 | ^ i ; ^ i^gt'd^oiy. A I & I ^ : ^ ,-;•;./• 

i ; ^ : ' ' ". o p t : f c , p i i > • ••" ' : . •••••; ^ : : : \ ^ ; : ; - : ; . ; ; " - - . ^ ^ ; - : • : , . . ^ , , ; •-., ;•"• k ^ - : . " . ' ; : •:•;:, " : V 

• •: • ;A..:;;.-:;:• Sft-;-t | iy^ 

t: . r g a d ; i t , \ ' i t , . ; i | y ^ ' ^ t h ^ f e " . ; ^ ^ ^ t M mfi^^ : 'p r^Mf^ •••;•,••' 

<3^teCTirLM^:VtKeii-- i i i^"^ti>6ra(5t; ' -g4^ifi | -#i ;• 

a|5pli0ai?i^:i; .#tiOIi:^ 

2t:'- ••••less,- $ ' B B i K e : r tdiij/.spviBy-'fiad^^ •aS:lt/.wi:5ul4i--:-:-

•22-;; ^be;b§lci '^ '-i^rk|t:;^^^^^ 

24 ::•.;': • ^Sd : ; i e t ' . s . . i u rn ; t : o l̂ -̂  wgii,;^;it^"&: t h e .samê ^̂  

2'5' - .page, i n the-^ 'a i idi t r e p o r t . •• •The-20pa- e o n t r a c t support ' ; - - .V 

17. 

18 

1-9 

20^ 
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I think is what we were referring to, 

102: 

this itesL ; 

starting at the bottom half of the page. Do you see 

that? 

A 

Q. 

the bottom 

Yes. 

Now, 

of 23 

you say, aGtuall:̂  

carrying over to 

r this statement at 

24, that this 

renegotiation was in the best interest of ABP-Ohio 

ratepayers and ^̂ JA commends AEPSC for its efforts. 

Do you see that? 

A,. Yes-

Q. Now, if this had occurred in 2009 during 

the audit period, would the production bonus payment 

have been appropriately flowed through the EAC? 

A. One would hope it wouldn't have occurred 

in 2009 because the market was entirely different-

So if you're assuming the same market conditions 

existed — 

Q. Yeg. 

A — then I b e l i e v e i t would flow through 

t h e SAC 

Q. Okay^ iJow,, Ms.. Medine, I i>eXieve you 've 

i n d i c a t e d you have wi th you a copy of t h e 

c o n f i d e n t i a l r e p o r t s t h a t were p r o v i d e d th rough t h e 

a u d i t th rough supplementa l d i s c o v e r y r e l a t i v e t o t h e 

c o a l r e s e r v e * 

ARtfSTRONG £ OKEY, XNCw ColuinbuSf Ohio ( ^ 4 j 224-9481 
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A.. Yes. 

Q. And you have those with you still? 

A.. I have the complete H H | report from 

April 2009 and then I have whatever excerpts you 

provided me from the October 2007 report.. 

Q„ In the notebook? 

A., . Yes. 

Q, That is a complete copy, okay. 

So with respect to the October 2007 

report, what's the nature of that report? 

A. The way I read the report, it was 

intended to provide guidance to AEP for its 

negotiations with the coal supplier regarding the 

value of the coal reserve so that it could be used in 

its negotiations. 

Q,. Right. So this was the report that AEP' 

had at the time they entered into the January 2008 

settlement agreement? 

A. That's — 

Q„ Is that correct? 

A» That's my understanding. That is my 

understanding. But again, as.pointed out earlier, 

it's not, you know — it's a desktop analysis. So 

it's not — it doesn't have the same rigor that the 

i^ril 2009 report has. 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC, ColumbUS, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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Q, Whatever it is, that's the only report 

AEP had at the time they entered into the agreement, 

correct? 

A.. Not to be glib, but I didn't even know of 

its existence until last week so I can't speak to 

whatever e l s e it had or didn't have. 

Q. • Okay. Well, when you say "last week" — 

A. Two weeks ago, 

Q. Are you referring to August 6th? 

A.. Yes. 

Q. Okay-

A. Sorry, two weeks ago-

Q. You're referring to the communication 

that said if you'd like to review the referenced 

report, please contact my office? 

A.. Again, I don't have the complete e-mail, 

but I believe it started with "we have a supplemental 

production,." 

Q.. Yeah, okay„ And are you referring to the 

audit recpiest initially, EVA 4-14, that said "j 

|^^^HHH|^^^H|HHHHHH||H, most 

r e p o r t " ? 

A.. I d o n ' t r e c a l l say ing "most c u r r e n t 

r e p o r t , " and I — I b e l i e v e you, but I would cavea t 

i t w i th s a y i n g I reviewed my n o t e s subsequent t o t h a t 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC, Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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and found it didn't refer to multiple reports. It 

simply referred — 

MR. NOURSE: May I approach, your Honor? 

EXAMINER JONES: You may. 

A.. I also note in our cover letters when we 

do document requests, we say we may not be actually 

asking for specifics, we don't know the names of each 

document, and for you to interpret it as broadly as 

possible with the intent. 

Q.. Yeah. There's lots of instructions with 

discovery. Can you read the interrogatory EVA 4-14? 

A. 

most current report.. " 

Q- Most current report.. 

A.. Correct-

Q. Okay. Thank you. 

Ms. Medine, are you an expert on valuing 

coal reserve properties? 

A- I have been involved in coal valuations-

I would not put myself — I'm not a mining engineer,. 

Q- Did you undertake a valuation study of ̂  

the coal reserves we're talking about in this case? 

A.. Nc 

Q.. The extent of your opinion regarding the 

value of that reserve is strictly limited to 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, I N C , Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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repeating your understanding of the reports that have 

been provided to you; is that accurate? 

A. Yes-

Q„ Now, with respect to the 2007 report ;. 

could you turn to page 11? ' 

A. Yes. 

Q. Would you agree that it states that in 

||||||||||||||[|| opinion the maximum valuation placed on the 

property is ̂  million? 

A, Yes. 

Q. Let's turn to the second report, 

April 30th, 2009- Okay, this was the report you had 

for several months and were able to fully analyze and 

study to your heart's delight. 

A,. Yes. 

Q.. Okay. Now, do you recall the — well, 

first of all, this is referred to as a feasibility 

study, correct? 

A.. Yes., 

Q.. And what does that mean to you? 

A, I believe that ̂ ^Hl was engaged to 

determine the feasibility of actually mining this 

reserve. 

Q» So the feasibility of actually mining the 

reserve meaning develop the property. 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC, Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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A, Or selling it to a third party to develop 

or leasing it or — any of those.. 

Q„ Do you recall the period of time that — 

until initial operation was assximed in the report? 

A., I don't recall, but I can look it up. 

If you want to direct me, that would be 

quicker, but I'd be happy to figure it out. 

Q,. Well, let me ask you this: Was it your 

recollection it was ̂ ^ H years — it was in year ̂ BB 

of development that the mine production could 

commence? 

A. That's exactly what it looks like. 

Q., Okay.. With full operation at ̂ ^(j years. 

A., It looks, well, production started fairly 

healthy at fHmillion tons in year ll^l^nd then 

didn't go above ĵ/f/̂ f so I*m not sure I would — 

Q. Let me direct you to page 2-7, the 

statement about full production y e a r i m . Do you. 

see that? 

A. I understand what they're saying. I'm 

just saying the fact if you look at the production ' 

numbers that they're putting in here, there's not a 

huge difference between year m and year j^^K 

Q.. But you agree with my statement that's 

what was assumed in the report? 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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A.. That's f ine. 

Q. Now, turning to 2-8, you made some 

reference to this earlier, but the base case with the 

more modest values, do you see that? 

• A. Yes.. 

Q. In the table 2-17. So that assumes a 

market price, coal market price, for the 

approximately BByears of operation of the mine that 

would be at or above ĵjjjJH; is that correct? 

A,. Yeah. It's actually a calculated number, 

so it's the number that would yield basically zero 

NPV. 

Q.. Net present value, you mean? 

A, Net present value using a Upercent 

discount factor. 

Q. And, again, using that assuicption 

produces the more modest values, including a loss at 

an • percent discount rate of ||| million. 

A.. I think that's a function of how the 

number was derived, 

Q. Okay. That's all I'm asking you. 

So the more robust or the higher numberis 

in the valuation table' there, page 2-8, those are 

based on the future price projections of the report.'s 

author. 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC, Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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A, Correct. 

Q.. And is that reflected in the box that*s 

above — in the middle of the page there on 2-8? 

A. That's my understanding. 

Q- That that price goes from the $H| area 

and fluctuates out to about ^ ^ ^ J , l e t ' s say, in 

IBI I ' ^s that correct? 

A. I'm sorry, where are you starting from? 

1^^^ Are you starting from a later year? 

Q„ Yeaho I'm really just asking that price 

escalated over time and maxes out in • H l ^ t 

approximately 

A.. It looks like that. 

Q.. So in order to rely on any of these 

values, one key assumption there is that those market 

prices are accurate, correct? 

A. Certainly in any analysis prices are 

variable. 

Q.. Is it also your understanding that the 

total capital investment required to develop this 

property would be — would exceed a 

A„ Looks to me on page 2-7 that the initial 

capital is IBB million. Is there another table" 

you're referring to? 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC, Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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Q- I've got 7-10 here, a note, yes, right 

under the table on 7-10. 

A« So that includes ongoing CAPEX? 

Q. Yes.. 

A.. The initial capital would be 1111 million, 

if your question was what was the capital. 

Q. I wanted to know what- kind of capital 

requirements to develop and operate this mine. 

A,. Would be d l million initially and then 

there would be ongoing CAPEX. 

Q. Totaling vrtiat? 

A. According to this report, $ m million. 

Q. Now, are you aware of any permitting 

activity that AEP's done relative to this property?; 

A,. As I mentioned earlier, I was advised 

that they had begun the permitting activity. 

Q. I thought you said earlier that you were 

advised that they were planning to permit it. 

A.. Fair enough,' My understanding was they 

were planning to permit it. 

Q, And you're iiVfawl.ftof̂ ^̂  actual, 

permitting activity on this property occurring. 

A~ Other than what I said earlier, that I 

was told that they are planning to permit, which I 

would assume that was underway, but it may not be. 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC, Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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Q, Well, planning and doing are two • 

different things, right? 

A. Right. But when you do a m n e permit, 

you need quite a bit of baseline data, so I guess xtiy 

presumption was that some of that data collection was 

underway. 

Q- All right. That's just a presumption. 

A. Correct* 

Q.. So if you look out at the next 30 years, 

just like this report did, and opine on coal priceS/ 

do you see a clear picture, or is there a lot of fog? 

A, I see a clear picture. 

Q. Do you have a crystal ball? 

A. As we say in the business, people who use 

crystal balls end up being crushed glass.. But I 

think there's some understanding as to what's going 

to happen, with coal mining costs and values, and 

obviously we have forecasts, but . - . 

Q., Is if possible that coal prices would be 

A. Sure. And it's possible they^d be above 

it. I mean, I think that — again, I don't know 

what's behind this forecast, but I think that 

certainly, you know, we come up with an annual 

forecast as well and it changes from year to year. : 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC, Columbus, dhio (614) 224-9481 
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So obviously there's some sensitivity. 

Q.. It changes from year to year, 

A.. Correct. 

Q,, And is it also possible coal prices in 

H m would be below $•? 

A* I do not believe so. 

' Q.. Is it your opinion that carbon regulation 

could impact coal prices over the long term? 

A, So the question is — I think there's two 

questions — is what happens to production costs and 

where do supply and demand cross.. So clearly a 

reduction in demand would change where the two cross, 

but the reality is with respect to coal production 

costs that there's not a lot of opportunity for 

improvement in costs or productivity, and so the 

xtiines that can't survive because they're too high 

cost would shut down.. But I don't believe it would 

be below $|. 

Q„ Yeah„ And I didn't ask you about 

production costs. I*m talking strictly about market 

prices and your projection, your understanding, your 

expertise. So you're saying that carbon regulation: 

would not reduce the price of coal in the future, in 

your opinion? 

A, What l*m saying is that coal prices 

ARMSTRONG £ OKEY, INC, Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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ultimately are cost driven and where markets settle 

depends on what overall demand is. So to the extent 

that demand is reduced, you might have a different 

settling point on market price, but ultimately you 

will not sell coal for any continued period of time 

at the price that's not only below cash cost but 

below cash cost plus recovery of your capital. 

Q. Did you predict the precipitous price 

increases in '7 and '8 before they happened? 

A. No.. I'm not suggesting I did. But what 

we did predict was the fact that when prices came 

back down, they couldn't go down below a certain 

level because you would obviously need to be able to 

recover your costs. 

Q,. Would your answer — I'm sorry. Go 

ahead. 

A,. Just with a step increase in cost, you : 

would not expect prices to go back to the early-2007 

levels.. 

Q. So you didn't see that abrupt price 

change coming? 

A, No, . 

Q, Okay„ Now, would your answer be the sajrae 

as it was for carbon regulation if I asked you the i 

same series of questions about environmental 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC, Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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regulations? 

A. I'm not sure what your question is* 

Q. Environmental regulations beyond just 

carbon. 

A.. Well, I think there's about ten different 

regulations under development.. 

Q. Yeah.. And there's, if we look out 30 

years, there's probably another couple dozen, right? 

A- Approximately. 

Q. Does that prospect of environmental 

regulation affect coal prices in the market? 

A. Again, I think coal prices are ultimately 

cost driven with a return on your investment. To the 

extent that you can't produce — you can't sell the' 

coal at a price greater than cost plus a return, the 

coal mines ultimately shut down and go away. 

So again, if you change your demand 

profile, you'll change sort of where the market 

settles, but that still doesn't eliminate the 

possibility that you need to be able to recover your 

cost.. 
- . . i . 

Q, But where the market settles is'a """• 

different way of saying the market price? 

A.. Yes„ 

Q. Okay, Would your answers also be the 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, I N C , Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481; 
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same relative to the prospect of renewable and 

advanced energy, alternative energy portfolio 

requirements that may be imposed in the next 30 

years? 

I certainly agree with you, the future is A-

uncertain. 

Q„ 

hax'e.. 

Okay. 

MR. NOURSE: Your Honor, that's all I 

Thank you, Ms. Medine.. 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you. 

Staff, do you have any redirect for this 

witness or do you want a few minutes? 

MR- MARGARD: Let us have just a few 

momenta if we can, please, your Honor» 

EXAMINER JONES: I'll give you five 

minutes or so. 

(Recess taken.) 

EXAMINER JONES: L e t ' s go b a c k on t h e 

r e c o r d . 

Any r e d i r e c t f o r t h i s w i t n e s s ? 

MR- MARGARD^ J u s t a s i m p l e q u e s t i o n , i f 

I mayr y o u r H o n o r . 

EXAMINER JONES: You may p r o c e e d . 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, I N C , Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

By Mr. Margard: 

Q.. Ms. Medine, you were asked a number of 

questions about risks associated with valuing the 

reserve here. Are there any ways to minimize the 

risks in valuating the reserve? 

A.. I think the best way to get a feel for 

how much the reserve is worth is actually to sell it 

because through, you know, an appropriate process 

where you get as much competition as possible, then 

you can actually get a full value of the reserve and 

eliminate the risks because a third party would be 

assuming the risks related to capital or the risks 

related to market. 

MR. MARGARD: That's all I have, your 

Honor. Thank you-

EXAMINER JONES: Any further recross 

based on that very narrow redirect? 

MR. IDZKOWSKI: No, your Honor. 

EXAMINER JONES: Mr. Clark? . 

MR. CLARK; No questions. Thank you, 

your Honor. ' ' , 

EXAMINER JONES: Mr. Nourse.. 

MR., NOURSE: Yes, your Honor. 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC, ColumbUS, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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RECROSS-EXAMIHATI ON 

By Mr, Nourse: 

Q. If the Commission were to order Ohio 

Power to sell the coal reserve, do you think that 

j would positively or negatively affect the price that ' 

could be obtained in the market? 

A.. If the public knew that you had to sell 

the coal reserve, is that .your question? 

Q-. Ysah-

A.. Obviously, that shows that it's a true 

sale, so it might actually generate additional 

interest in the market because they know that, in 

fact, you're going to transact. You're not just 

doing it for paper purposes. But obviously there's 

the risk that people might think you could get it at 

a fire sale, but I think generally it would show that 

it was going to happen, it was a real sale, and it 

wasn't simply to put a value on it. , 

MR. NOURSE: Thank you. That's all I j 

have. _ , 

EXAMINER JONES: Anything further? ! 

Thank you. Ms. Medine. I believe that's 

all. 

Mr- Margard, do you renew moving the 

admission of Staff Exhibit No, 3? 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC*, Co lumbus , Ohio (614} 2 2 4 - 9 4 8 1 
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1 MR. MARGARD: Indeed I do, your Honor. 

2 EXAMINER JONES: Any objection to the 

3 admission of staff Exhibit 3? 

^ MR. NOURSE: No, your Honor.. 

5 EXAMINER JONES: It shall be so admitted. 

« (EXHIBIT ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.) 

7 EXAMINER JONES: Do you have any further 

s witnesses to-present at this time, Mr. Margard? 

^ MR. MARGARD: I have no other witnesses. 

Thank you, your Honor. 

^̂  EXAMINER JONES: At this time would you 

12 like to move the admission of Commission Exhibit 1 

13 and Exhibits lA and IB (sic)? 

^̂  MR- MARGARD: I would, your Honor­

is EXAMINER JONES: Any objection to the 

IS admission of Commission Exhibit 1 or Exhibits lA or-

17 IB? 

1® Hearing none, those three documents shall 

19 be admi t t ed . 

20 .(EXHIBITS ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.) 

21 EXAMINER JONES: That does conclude your 

22 witnesses at this time, Mr. Margard? 

22 MR. MARGARD: It does, thank you, your : 

24 Honor . " 

25 EXAMINER JONES: Thank y o u . 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, I N C , Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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Mr. Nourse, are you prepared to call your 

first witness? 

MR.. NOURSE: Yes, your Honor. 

Mr.. Satterwhite^s handling the witness. 

MR.. SATTERWHITE: Your Honor, the company 

would like to call Timothy M. Dooley to the stand., 

EXAMINER JONES: Would you please raise 

your right hand. 

(Witness ŝ -̂ r̂n.) 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you. 

Mr. Satterwhite, you may proceed. 

MR.. SATTERWHITE: Thank you, your Honor, 

TIMOTHY M- DOOLEY 

being first duly sworn, as prescribed by law, was ' 

examined and testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

By Mr.. Satterwhite: 

Q., Mr. Dooley, did you cause testimony to; be 

filed in this case on August 16th, 2010? 

A. Yes, I did. 

MR, SATTERWHITE: Your Honor, I'd like; to 

mark Company Exhibit 1 as the confidential copy of; 

that testimony that's in the docket. 

EXAMINER JONES: It shall be so marked. 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC, ColumbuS, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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Mr. Dooley? 

A. 
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MR. SATTERWHITE: And Company Exhibit lA 

redacted public version. 

EXAMINER JONES: And it Shall be so 

(EXHIBITS MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.) 

Do you have a copy in front of you, 

I do. 

MR,. SATTERWHITE: Does the Bench or the • 

reporter need a copy? 

Thank you. 

Q-

testimony? 

A. 

Q. 

EXAMINER JONES; No, I'm all right. 

Do you have any corrections to this 

I do not-

If I were to ask you all the same 

questions today, would your answers be exactly the 

same? 

A.. 

' 

witness for 

Yes, they would. 

MR. SATTERWHITE: I would now tender the 

cross-examination-

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you.. 

Mr, Idzkowski, do you have any questions? 

MR,. IDZKOWSKI: Yes, I do, your Honor. 

- _ _ ^ 

ARMSTRONG S OKEY, I N C , ColumbUS, Ohio (614) 2 2 4 - 9 4 8 1 
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CROSS-EXAMINATION 

By MX, I d z k o w s k i : 

Q,. .Good a f t e r n o o n , Mr. D o o l e y . 

A,. G o o d - a f t e r n o o n . . 

Q„ We met a t your d e p o s i t i o n , c o r r e c t ? 

A. We d i d . 

Q,. You state the purpose of your testimony 

is to address financial audit recommendations 1, 2, 

3, 6c, 6d, 6h, and 6i. 

A. That is correct. That is part of my --

the purpose of my testimony. 

you? 

A,. 

Q-

A. 

Q. 

finding 2 

A, 

Q.. 

Do you have your testimony in front of 

I do. 

Can you look at page 3, please. 

Yes. 

There you're discussing management audiit 

That* s correct.. 

Regarding that finding, in that coal 

contract settlement with the coal supplier did OPOo 

receive $ ^ million in that contract buyout? 

A,. Yes, through a -note-receivable-

Q. And was that paid — has that been paid? 

A. Yes, it has. 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC, ColumbUS, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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Q, And of that $||||| million, how much was ; 

passed through to customers? How much effectively 

did customers pay for the fuel ultimately? 

A.. Well, they didn't necessarily receive a 

portion of any specific piece of the settlement 

agreement.. They received a portion of the total 

value that was received. Some $ • • million was 

deferred as part of this settlement when we recorded 

it, and in 2009 and 2010- portions of that were 

amortized to fuel inventory. The Ohio retail FAC 

portion would have gotten a portion of that. 

Q,. And that renegotiation was done in 2007 

and signed in 2008, correct? 

A.. That's correct-

Q. January 2008 to be more exact. 

A.. Correct-

Q. And tha t was t o terminate a 1992 

contract , correct? 

A, Yes. That ' s ' correct., 

Q,. And that extended, even though it 

terminated in January of.2-008, it extended the. 

original contract price of $^|^ ton through the end 

of 2008, correct? 

A, Yes. I believe so.. 

Q. So tha t contract p r i ce extension through 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., ColumbUS, Ohio (614) 224-9431 
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the end of the 2008 period would have been one of the 

benefits o.f agreeing to that buyout, correct, for 

AEP? • 

A., I can't speak to, the value that was 

attributed to the contract going through 28 — or, 

2008. 

Q. PVhat• happened to the rest of the • 

. 4P|million?; 

A,.'.. The rest?'. I. doh't' think IV und̂ r"•S,tan(î t•he• 

.questipn,,. 

Q,: ,:r^li,/ 'wiiat/;hapgened,/—Vyou s a i 4 • • • o f . 

.-tli^ "tc)tai v a l u e t h a t - w a s 'received'wa.g.^.d^fsrr^d^"^fQr-V'^ 

• f u t u r e per iods - . "Vi^at/happened to-the^ restVo'f••iti? :-

• Av" '.The resi^dual'-amooaht. Was>-"Gon̂ ^ 

and in i-rtcoiae.. 

Q: : And 'AE^; ^Is.o; received-around." t 

"per-i-Gd a ,$B-mi i l i .oh :n 'd te from ^BBBH;.iii,',NQ^0i^ 

• 2'Q.Q8V c o r r e c t ? ",. • 

•. Av " ,":i" WQuldri^t-describe' i t a s - r i e a r . I t was.. '. 

i n Novertiber *,0.8,'̂  .. There:''was. another ; se^ 

s e t t l e m e n t ' for t h a t ambmt .th^t, r e l a t e . d - t o " t h e 

j i . gu ida t i on o f - s o m e ' s h o r t f a l l t ons t h a t .were not ' 

received^ in t h a t 'year'. 

Q,,- when did".that.• r enego t i a t ion / : o r ' t h a t , 

n e g o t i a t i o n r t a k e p l a c e ? ' ' 

ARMSTRONG-& OKEY, IK-C ,• Columbu's-,-" Ohio (614) 2 2 4 - 9 4 8 1 
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A. I do not know specifically the month or 

days that that took place. It's my understanding it 

was sometime in Hovember., 

Q And how much of that — that was a note 

for its million? 

A Yes. That was how the settlement was 

described 

Q. And how much of that $(5 million note has 

been paid? 

A. I believe it's all been paid., 

Q, And how much of that $ji'millaon passed 

through to customers? 

A, I believe that all of that was recorded 

as a credit to fuel expense in 2008 Or a portion 

thereof. It was all taken in income., 

Q., In 2008? 

A. In 2008, yes, that November 2008 

settlement. 

Q. So it had no effect aftei 2008. 

A.. That»s correct.,-

Q,. And you t e s t i f i e d t h a t the appraised 

value of t h i s coal reserve was H B I ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ " - -

A.. Yea. 

Q. And tha t was appraised by AEP's Fuel 

Procurement Group, correc t? 

AF̂ MSTROKG & OKEY, INC. , Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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Yes. 

What independent a p p r a i s e r was invo lved . 

I t was my u n d e r s t a n d i n g t h a t t h e | | | | | m 

r e p o r t t h a t ' s been t h e s u b j e c t of o the r tes t imony was 

one of t h e 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

b a s i c suppor t ing documents. 

Have you seen t h a t a p p r a i s a l ? 

No, I ' v e never r e a d i t . 

Now, you c a n ' t t e s t i f y as t o whether 

t h a t ' s a r easonab le va lue for t h a t p r o p e r t y , c o r r e c t ? 

A. 

Q< 

t e s t imony . 

T h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Yet i f you look a t page 3 of your 

you accept t h e v a l u a t i o n of H l ^ i l ^ i o h 

as t h e va lue of t h a t p r o p e r t y . 

A.. 

Q. 

as a d e b i t 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. 

Q-

connec t ion 

r e c o r d e d a 

Yes, we did.. 

And you recorded t h a t as a — t h a t amount 

t o n o n u t i l i t y p r o p e r t y account No.. 121 , ; 

Yes „ 

And you recorded o f f s e t t i n g c r e d i t s as in 

t o t h a t d e b i t - e n t r y and o t h e r v a l u e , you 

c r e d i t - t o fue l expense account No. 501 for 

$ m H i n i l l i o n , c o r r e c t ? 

A. 

Q̂  

We d i d . 

Did you p r e p a r e your t es t imony a f t e r t he 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, I N C , C o l u m b u s , Ohio (614) 2 2 4 - 9 4 8 1 
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audit report was filed? 

A.. Yes. 

Q„ And did you read the audit report before 

you filed your testimony? 

A. I'si sure I did.. 

Q. And according to the audit report, that 

value of that coal reserve is unclear, correct? 

A.. Based upon the discussions I've heard, it 

appears as if it's unclear. 

•Q- Do you recall in the audit report the 

statement, "It is EVA's opinion that the AEPSC's 

price assumption is very conservative"? 

A. I'm sorry, I don't know where you're —^ 

what you're talking about. 

Q., So you don't recall that statement in the 

audit report? 

A. Is there a reference you want me to lobk 

a t ? 

Q-

know i f — 

A, 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

I f you have t h e a u d i t r e p o r t , I d o n ' t : 

I do . 

0}cay„ 

Is there a particular page? 

Yes.. I think 2-21, in the footnote. 

I cannot speak to how this information 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC, Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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was gathered. I'm not familiar with it. 

Q. So is it still proper, then, under 

accounting rules if the value is unclear, is' it still 

proper to record the value in the credit and debit 

entries of the company at •HBjmillion? 

A.. Right/ at the time of the transaction 

that was our fuel group's expert opinion as to what 

the value of the property should be reflected at. 

Q. And you don't know what, if any, plan .AEP 

has for this coal reserve, correct? 

A. No, I do not-

Q. Now, on page 4 you testified about, down 

at the bottom of the page, about a "Sm[[ million 

production bonus payment to a coal supplier in Juiie 

2008." Do you see that? 

A. Yes.. 

Q, Has AEP ever paid such a bonus to this 

company or any other coal producer before? 

A,. Of that nature? Not to my knowledge» 

Q. And as a result of this renegotiation 

with ̂ his coal producer, this production bonus 

payment and other terms of this coal cost to AEP, ̂ how 

did that affect the coal price from this coal 

producer? 

A. I'm sorry, I didn't completely understand 

AEMSTRONG & OKEY, INC, Columbus, Ohio {614} 224-9401 
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that question. 

Q. Was 

this production 

provide the 

ton through 

A. 

amendments 

vendor„ 

Q-̂  

A, 

128 

ASP able to keep the — by paying 

bonus, did AEP, did the company 

same original contract price for coal per 

2008? 

I'm not aware c 

related to this 

So i 

Not 

)f any other contract 

particular contract or 

bhe price didn't change.. 

to the best 

j would probably be a better 

your Honor. 

MR, IDZKOWSKI: 

EXAMINER JONES: 

MR.. IDZKOWSKI: 

I have, your Honor, 

By Mr, Clar 

Q. 

1 for lEU., I 

A. 

EXAMINER JONES: 

Mr. 

MR.. 

k; 

Mr. 

bel. 

Yes 

Clark? 

CLARK: Yes 

. of my knowledge. That 

question for.Witness Rusk. 

If I may have a moment. 

Yes-

That's all the questions 

Thank you. 

s, your Honor, thank you. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

Dooley, my 

Leve we met 

name is Joe Clark, counsel 

at your deposition. 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, I N C , Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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Q. You're familiar with FASB 71, correct? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. And you're — 

A., Go ahead. 

Q. In-your experience have you accounted for 

deferred assets and deferred liabilities pursuant to 

regulatory commission orders? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And do you agree that, when a deferred 

asset or deferred liability is created pursuant to a 

commission order, that the recording of a deferred \ 

asset or a deferred liability is appropriate in 

accordance with G?iA91 

A. Yes.. 

MR, CLARK: That's all I have, your 

Honor 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you. 

Staff, any questions for this witness? 

MR,. MARGARD: No questions, thank you, 

your Honor 

EXAMINER JONES: Mr. S a t t e r w h i t e , any 

r e d i r e c t ? Or do you need a minute? 

MR, SATTERWHITE: J u s t one C l a r i f i c a t i o n , 

your Honor, j u s t r e a l qu ick . 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC, Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

By Mr, Satterwhite: 

Q- Mr. Dooley, do you remember when counsel 

for OCC was asking about the timing of the testimony 

in relation to the valuation for the reserve? 

A. It was my understanding he was talking , 

about my testimony in relation to when the audit 

report was being — 

Q. Correct, You remember that line of 

questioning? 

A.. , Yes. 

Q. Was the accounting that was done after 

the audit report — or when was the accounting done? 

A. The accounting was done contemporaneously 

with the transaction back in January '08» 

Q. So prior to the audit even taking place, 

A.. Yes. 

MR. SATTERWHITE: That's all I have, y0ur 

Honor,. ' ^ 

EXAMINER JONES: Mr. Idzkowski, any 

further questioning .base on that redirect? 

MR» IDZKOWSKI: No, thank you, your 

Honor.. 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you.. 

Anyone else? Mr.. Clark? Staff? 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC, Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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Anything further for this witness? 

MR, NOURSE: No thank you, your Honor. 

EXAMINER-JONES: Thank you, Mr. Dooley., 

You may step down. 

Mr. Satterwhite, do you move the 

admission of your Exhibits 1 and lA? 

MR. SATTERWHITE: Yes, your Honor.. 

EXAMINER JONES; Any objection-to the 

admission of Company Exhibits 1 and lA? 

MR. IDZKOWSKI: No, your Honor.. 

EXAMINER JONES; Hearing none, those two 

documents shall be admitted. 

(EXHIBITS ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.) 

MR. CLARK: Your Honor, to roake sure I 

have my record straight, is lA the confidential? 

EXAMINER JONES: lA is the confidential, 

according to my records. I'm sorry, lA redacted. 

MR. SATTERWHITE: We've used numbers for 

all of our confidentials and then A for each of our 

publics.. 

EXAMINER JONES: I*m sorry, Mr. Clark/ I 

had it backwards.. 

Is the company ready to call its next 

witness? 

MR, NOURSE: Yes, your Honor, 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC, Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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Stand. 

EXAMINER JONES: You may proceed, 

MR. NOURSE: Call Jason T. Rusk to the 

Your Honor, I would like to mark — 

EXAMINER JONES: Let me swear him in 

first. 

MR. NOURSE: I'm sorry.. 

(Witness sworn. ) • 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you. Now you may 

proceed, Mr,. Nourse. 

MR, NOURSE: Thank you. I'd like to mark 

Mr-, Rusk's confidential, filed-under-seal testimony 

as Company Exhibit No. 2 and his public version of 

his direct testimony as Exhibit No. 2A-

EXAMINER JONES: It shall be so marked.. 

(EXHIBITS MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.) 

JASON T. RUSK 

being first duly sworn, as prescribed by law, was 

examined and testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

By Mr.. Nourse: 

Q. Mr. Rusk, do you have the exhibits in ; 

front of you we just marked? 

A. My testimony? 

ARMSTRONG & OPCEY, INC, Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

prepared? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Your testimony. 

Yes, I do. • 

And did you cause this testimony 

Yes, I did. 

And do you have any corrections? 

I do have one. I believe it is 

9, third line down, it should say instead of 

test," there should be inserted the word "on 

"based on test sources.." 

Q.. 

A,. 

Q. 

Any other corrections or updates 

None that I'm aware of. 

With that if you were asked all 

same questions today under oath, would your 

be the same 

A. 

the witness 

? 

Yes, they would. 

MR. NOURSE: Your Honor, I would 

for cross-examination. 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you., 

Mr. .Idzkowski? 

MR, IDZKOWSKI: Thank you, your 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

By Mr. Idzkowski: 

Q. Good afternoon J. Mr. Rusk. 

133 

to be . 

on page 

"based 

11 

r 

? 

these 

answers 

tender-

Honor. 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, I N C , ColumbUS, Ohio (614) 224-9481 



0 9 - 8 72/873-EL-FAC 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

' 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

13 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A. 

Q. 

A, 

correction 

found it.. 

Q.. 

A.. 

Q-. 

management 

134 

Good afternoon. 

Nice to see you again. 

Nice to see you. Thank you for the 

on the testimony because you actually 

You're .welcome. 

Mr. Rusk, are you a CPA? 

No, I am not. 

And you're providing testimony regarding 

audit recommendations niimbers 1, 2, 4, 5, 

and part of No. 6, correct? 

A, 

Q» 

management 

Correct. 

And you say AEP agrees with most of th^ 

audit recommendations in this audit 

report, correct? 

A. 

Q-

Y e s . • 

Regarding recoiiituendation No. 2 — is 

there a copy of the audit report at the witness 

Stand? 

A. 

Q.. 

A. 

I do have one, yes.. 

Okay, 

May not be updated with all of Witness: 

Medine's notes, by — and corrections, but I've got 

one. 

Q. 

•' 

M l right. Well, your cross-examination 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, I N C , C o l u m b u s , Ohio (614) 2 2 4 - 9 4 8 1 
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will mainly follow your testimony, but I may ask 

about that audit report. 

At page 3 you start talking about 

recommendation 2, and that is that ASP should 

reconsider new coal procurement strategies to avoid 

overcommitments in the future. To your knowledge, do 

you know what was the basis for this recommendation? 

A. I'm guessing from the recommendation, the 

timing of the audit report, that it's referring to 

the high inventories that we experienced in 2009 and 

the fact that the auditor is speaking to the fact 

that we should take measures into the future to 

attempt to not have that situation occur again, 

Q. And in your testimony, page 3, line 20i 

you say, "In fact, such an approach is already part 

of AEPSC's procurement strategy." Correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. So is this in response to this 

recommendation, or is it just a continuing program or 

pursuit? 

A. I would say it's probably a blend of 

both.. I think that the auditor has correctly 

assessed the situation of our inventory situation and 

we recognized it as well and took efforts and have 

taken — and have an ongoing policy to try to 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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minimize this situation from happening in the future. 

Q- And on line 22 you refer to this 

providing— this strategy providing flexibility. ' 

How does it do that? 

A. One of the ways in which you can provide 

this — lessen this risk of overpurchasing would be 

to not commit as many physical hedges as what we 

may — that we've had in-the past, and that provides 

more flexibility to respond to market and-the 

variability that comes as a result of low burns and 

higher fluctuations in load.. 

Q. And on page 4, if you can look at that, 

you are — AEPSC is concerned about the Commission 

setting overly prescriptive long-term and short-term 

contract percentages- What do you mean by that? 

A. The concern that we have is to have a 

overly prescriptive procedure would require and 

possibly cause more of a lackadaisical attitude in 

those participating in this particular job function 

and with not necessarily having latitude to be able 

to fluctuate with and use business judgment, in their 

decisions to try to mitigate the volatility that 

exists in the marketplace. 

An example might be, if you would wish me 

to explain it further, would be that if something 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC, ColumbUS, Ohio (614) 224-9481' 
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were t o p r e s c r i b e too many p h y s i c a l hedges, we could 

be very much i n t h e same s i t u a t i o n t h a t we a re today . 

Q. Can you look a t recommenciation NO. 4, 

p l e a s e , on page 4, your t e s t i m o n y t h e r e ? 

A„ " Yes, s i r . . 

Q. That is,- t h a t AEPSC should 

c u r r e n t l y under take-a .study t o de te rmine whether 

t t i e r e i S : anV^CQhomic-'J^stifl for ; .con | inuir ig t o . 

the ^^^H^^^^^^HH^^^^^^^^^^H^ 
AEP support" ttiig:?^ ' • 

A. Yes . • fe-,"are>..-in::fa.ptV' I n ;tlie^ pfpoess-of; 

"doing a s tudy- jus t" . for" t h a t , very: purpos^^ 

• .-. Ĉ ",., ; • •Artd::has" t h a t . s t a r t e d ^ .•; ^ 

, A.,,. .That-"Study is.; uriderway/. althougt^: •it.".is-. • 

not. y e f completed.. 

.Q.: ••.^^111 . i t be done:.this>.;year?' . 

•A.' • That i.S:the- mit ic i ipat ior i , . : We-db-^b^llev^'" 

we should have ' i.t done - t h i s " ' y^a r . " • 

•Q. • "Can yotj; " look 'a t 'p^ge- : 5v please;..-. YgU. 

a.ddress" reCGmmehdation No .̂ 5- " 

A. "^es/ s i r ." 

, " " , " • Q. •' Now, here AEP doesri.'t-."agree-• that^ i t s •• • 

p r o c e d u r a l schedule of i t s p o l i c i e s and •procedures. •" 

•manual shou ld be: upda t ed , ; - co r r ec t ? 

A. Wel l ; we b e l i e v e t h a t t h e p o l i e i e s are. ' 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, I N C , C o l u m b u s ^ O h i o (61-4) • 2 2 4 - 9 4 8 1 
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worthy of update. The par t t ha t we have d i f f icu l ty 

with i s the word "procedure." 

Q, What i s your company's concern or problem 

with t ha t ? 

A, Jus t as s ta ted previously, t ha t a hard 

l i ne , ha rd - fa s t procedure may end up being too 

p r e sc r ip t i ve and consequently lead t o poor business 

decisions r a the r than be t t e r ones. 

Q.. Can you look at the bottom of page 5 to 

page 6, you ' re discussing the recommendation No. 6, 

p lease . 

A, Yes, s i r , 

Q.. And you*re discussing biomass co-f i r ing, 

in par t icu la r . . 

A Yes. 

Q, Does biomass co-firing always involve 

burning a biomass fuel with coal? 

A, Ho, not exclusively coal 

Q, What other types of fuel? 

A., Well, let me define this as saying 

biomass in a general description, if you were to 

include biodiesel into biomass,- we are using and 

currently atteirpting to use biodiesel in conjunction 

with fuel oil in start-up and consunption at some of 

our units,. The one that we have done testing in is ' 

ARMSTRCafG & OKEY, m c , Colurnbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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at the Pickaway facility. 

Q. So you're just in the testing stages at 

the Pickaway facility? 

A. We are just in the testing phases 

anywhere with this stuff, yes. 

Q. On page 8 you're discussing an Ohio EPA 

permit approval letter". What does that Ohio EPA 

permit pertain to? , 

A,. I may have to defer that to someone else. 

I am essentially responding in regard to the 

procurement and the assessment of the procurement for 

the particular materials and not necessarily the 

permitting itself. That's another area of expertise. 

Q. How does the cost of transportation of 

biomass fuel compare to the cost of transportation;of 

coal? 

A. Comparing — so far, as far as a dry 

biomass that we're talking about, weWe only seen ^ 

couple instances that we've actually seen quoted, 

mostly it's truck, but we have seen it.— if it's • 

been offered in a preblended where it would already 

be blended into a certain percentage with coal into a 

rail ear-

But with those concepts in the 

transportation is something that's very difficult,, to 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC, ColumbUS, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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try to assess in and of itself, and so the best way 

to evaluate these fuels would be on a delivered 

basis, looking at it in terms of heat content on a 

delivered basis.. 

Q. All right. Let's look at your response 

to recommendation No. 1, which I believe starts on : 

page 11 of your testimony. 

A. Okay, 

Q.. You say that AEP doesn't object to the 

recommendation, if the Commission should review the 

renegotiation of the coal contracts, correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. It's just that the Commission shouldn't. 

tell the company to credit any of the proceeds of the 

contract renegotiation to AEP's underrecovery of fu^l 

costs. 

A. That's correct. 

Q. Were you involved in this renegotiation 

process? 

A. I was not directly involved dn the 

renegotiation. 

Q. Do you then lack an understanding of th^ 

nature of the dispute between the producer and AEP?; 

A„ I can speak in general to what was being 

discussed in the department at the tdme. I was still 

ARMSTRONG & OICEY, INC, Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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in the department then, but I was not in the, shall I 

say, in the discussion, the settlement discussions 

themselves. 

Q When exactly did this company raise the 

matter of their contract with AEP? 

A. It began in the mid part of 2007.. 

Q. To your knowledge, did they raise such 

matters with any other coal- customers? 

A I do not know if they did or not„ 

Q. ' Is it your testimony that they sought 

renegotiation due to a change in laws ciaitiL? 

A That is correct. That is the main — 

that's one of the main focuses of their increase in 

costs which was their primary coa^laint. 

Q What*3 yovir understanding of that claim, 

a change in law claim? 

A. My understanding is that it was borne out 

of the 2006 Miners Act legislation that came out of 

the federal government that increased the safety 

requirements for underground mines and the additional 

costs that would have to be incurred by a mine to be 

able to comply these particular requirements. 

Q, Now, AEP's position In this dispute was 

that they didn't necessarily believe the coal 

supplier's position was legitimate, correct? 

ARMSTRONG £ OKEY, INC., ColujnbuSy Oiiio (614) 224-9481 



09-872/8 73-EL-FAC 

142 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

" ,7 

^: 

10, 

i i 

•12. 

13. 

1 4 • 

I S 

" i -6; 

17, 

16-: 

r9' 

20" 

2 1 . 

22'" 

Z3, 

24" 

25 

A, That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q- And you d o n ' t know how much t h i s m a t t e r 

i nc r ea sed c o s t s t o t h e coa l s u p p l i e r , do you? 

A., X do not know on a pe:t:--ton- b a s i s . I do 

know t h a t th-ere^ were —• t h a t j ^ H M j H ^^^ raake a" 

p r e sen t a t i on" t o AEP and t h e y - h a d - i n d i c a t e d t h a t t h e 

"add i t iona l c o s t would" be , from my reco l le .c t ion ," which 

•may.^.iiot .^be.'very Sound/., was ^ i n excess-of-

m i l l i o n d o l i a r s , / and", t ha t , they, "had had an. 

:out.'s.ide. q 'onsult ing- company; t h a t v e r i f i e d t h e nuitibexs 

by^doiiig ..another.;independent-vsti^^ and had .y^.rified 

that , that...ass.;e.S:Smeht-...'was"-, vei''^ correct",- a t .lea-at 

f:poffi- tii;at ^cMtside. dt>iiii<Hi, "• 

. 0 - Npw> yoii w e r e n ' t , - aga.i?i", d i i e c t - l y 

involved.- in t;he---.nejgotiati6ri5,;: c o r r e c t ? ; 

•" A..;; Mo, i wks^"nQt-.: .• 

Q' ': ^o as/.yott- Sctid, your- r e c o l i e o t i o n ' o f i t 

may n ^ t b e ' v e r y sound-. •' 

". ; A.;:." T b a f s -̂ r-;. t h a t ' s / f a i r . . . . " • . . . 

•Qf.-". "lUid-you-^re •not' aware of any of the" c o s t s 

t h a t tMS--:.G-pirLpany- cMimed t o - b e u n a n t i c i p a t e d or t o 

have riseii,-"' CGrreet?-

- A.' ' . f e other; :-̂ — n o - o t h e r c o s t s come, t a Hiitid. 

The o the r "aspect-t .hat- ' I was a l l u d i n g to'was." the' fa;ct-

t h a t the- othei- compla in t t h a t "was r a i s e d by the; 

ARMSTRONG/&- .OKEY, INC-., Columbus, Ohio (614}" 224-9481 
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company had to do with the fact that they believed 

that the contract itself was — had some issues in 

the language of the contract and they felt — and the 

phrase that was discussed in general around the 

office was that they had quoted it as being 

unconscionable.. 

Q. But AEP's position as to that claim was 

as with the other claim, that it-didn't necessarily 

believe that to be a legitimate claim, correct? 

A„ What I sensed in my limited capacity 

through this negotiation was that there was a certain 

degree of uncertainty as to how this was going to be 

received in the court of law and that m H I I ^ ^ ^ "*" 

excuse me, but the company had, in fact^ stated that 

they were, in fact, going to pursue legal remedy 

under whatever provisions they could and that they 

had believed that they had a very good case in trying 

to accomplish that. 

Q„ To your knowledge, there was never a 

claim actually filed against AEP,. 

A„ You're speaking to a legal claim? 

Q. Yes. 

A, To my knowledge, no, there was not. But 

I am not — I don't know for sure„ 

Q,. Was this cotffpany selling coal exclusively 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614J 224-9481 
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to AEP at the time? 

A. No, it was not. 

Q. Was it selling coal on the spot market,: 

to your knowledge? 

A. I would-imagine it was.. 

Q. So some of its coal was selling/ if it 

was at the time on the spot market, around ̂ | to U J 

dollars a ton, correct? 

A- I would expect that to be .the case, yes. 

If I might to add to that particular 

point, I do not believe that the argument that the 

counterparty made was that they had limited tons to 

provide, I believe that their complaint was 

exclusively with this particular coal supply 

agreement. 

Q, As a result of this renegotiation of this 

coal supplier's contract, the price of coal that AEP 

paid this supplier remained at thê  existing rate 

through the end of 2008, correct? 

A. Yes, that is correct. 

Q. Did this contract just deal with one type 

of coal AEP was buying? 

A. Pardon? -

Q.. Did the contract just deal with one type 

of coal, a particular type of coal? 

ARMSTRONG £ OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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A. There were two. Well, there were two 

quality specifications within the contract that I'm 

aware of, slightly different in the qualities, if you 

will.. But when you're talking about were they — 

when you say "types," I'm not sure exactly what 

you're speaking to. There's four different coal 

basins and they sell coal out of the Powder River 

Basin-as well, so I'm assuming that you're not 

talking about that. 

Q. No. 

A. Okay.. 

Q. The auditor says the settlement agreement 

was signed December 2007, but did it in fact get 

executed January 1, 2008? 

A. I believe. And I found this out just 

this morning, that I think that the actual signing of 

the document was January the 2nd of 2008. 

Q. That would be more convenient-

At some time in 2008 there was also with 

this coal supplier a note payable that they gave to 

AEP for $ H million, correct? 

A. That is correct. i 

Q. What was that in connection with? 

A- My understanding is that had to do with 

shortfall deliveries that — shortfalls in deliveries 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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throughout the year of 2008, and when we were in the 

end of the year in 2008, it was recognized that they 

were still going to continue to be short and, 

therefore, the negotiation was to address the fact 

they were — they were essentially going to reduce 

their quantity, the obligations for the year 2008, by 

tons.. 

Q.. Is this supplier still a coal supplier to 

AEP? 

A. Yes. . 

Q. Do you know what percentage of the coal 

AEP uses it gets from this supplier currently? 

A. Well, let me address this in a different 

way., Maybe that will change your question. 

Q. Okay. 

A.- AEPSC Still does bu s ine s s with this 

counterparty. The amount of coal that we have coming 

from that counterparty to both Columbus Southern and 

Ohio Power is much reduced, and I can't remember the 

exact percentage, but it does sell into some of the, 

other utilities that AEPSC is connected with. 

So I don't know if that changes your 

question at all or.... 

Q.. Does that allow you — well, I don't know 

if — 
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A. If you're asking for a percentage, I 

don't know„ But I don't even know what framework you 

want the percentage in, the companies', AEPSC. 

Q- Let me ask you about this second matter 

with the company in the audit report, it follows 

immediately after the first we've been discussing, 

regarding a contract support to a coal supplier. 

A. Could you direct me to a page, please? 

Yes,. In the audit report. It starts at 

page 2-22 

A. Okay. Yes. I have the page. 

And you discuss that I think in your 

testimony starting at page 16 but continuing to page 

17. 

A. Okay. 

Q. And you discuss at line 7 on page 17 that 

the coirpany — that the supplier was in jeopardy of 

breaching its loan agreements.. 

A. That is correct. 

Q- Do you know the nature- of these loan, 

agreements ? 

A. In regard to? 

Q. In r e g a r d t o why the company was in 

danger of b r e a c h i n g them.. 

A. They d i d not have enough revenue >to be 

AiyyfSTRONG & OKEY, INC., ColumbUS, Ohio (614} 224-9481 
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able to pay their debt, is my understanding. 

Q. Was the lender requiring that the balance 

be paid, or just the next payment? 

A- The next payment, is my rmderstanding.. 

Q.. Was there a demand for renegotiation by 

that lender? 

A. Between the lender and the creditor? 

Q. Yes. 

A. Not that I'm aware of.. I don't believe; 

that they wished to renegotiate; they wished to ; 

terminate their arrangement. 

Q, So the company wanted to call the loan 

i in. 

A., I think that's ~ 

Q., Or the investors. 

A. The investors, I think that's a fair way 

of putting it, yes. 

Q. And you don't know whether this company, 

the coal supplier, was insolvent at the time of this 

matter, correct? 

A. The coal company, I don't know its 

definitive economic status, but it could not cover 

the loans, is my understanding. 

Q.. Do you know if that lender had initiated 

legal action against the coal c©iLijjany? 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., ColumbuS/ Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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A. I do not know if it did that, no. 

Q. Did you participate in an extensive 

review of the coal supplier's books, records, lending 

arrangements, et cetera? 

A. AEPSC did- I did not, but we had our, 'I 

believe, our Treasury Group did so, and the company 

that we're talking about opened their books 

completely to our review, 

Q., Has AEP ever provided such a production 

bonus payment to a coal supplier before? 

A. I don't believe in this nature, but 

again, I don't think that any counterparty has ever-

been so forthcoming with all of their financials a4d 

borne their soul, so to speak, like this one has. 

Q. Now, this agreement and negotiation boh-us 

payment, et cetera, that we've been talking about, 

this is in the audit report because it relates to 

. coal used during 2009, correct? 

A- That is correct. 

MR.. IDZKOWSKI: If I may have just a 

moment, your Honor... ! 

EXAMINER JONES: You may. 

Q. Keeping this contract with this — by . 

making this production bonus payment and keeping this 

contract in place with this coal supplier where thb 

ARMSTRONG «t OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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coal supplier receives contract support, the one 

we've just been discussing/ in doing that the 

company, AEP, was able to maintain its current or 

existing price for coal through the end of 20QB, 

correct? 

A., I think you may be switching back and 

forth there on different companies- But what we did 

is provided a bonus called a — you know, of cash to 

this particular company in 2008.. We also increased 

the per-ton amount of it, you know, on its receipts 

in 2009,. 

But the benefit to that that I see going 

forward is the fact that those prices under the 

contract, the contract was preserved and retained in 

this particular instance and,the coal prices had 

returned back to their original contract value for 

the shipments beyond 2009. 

I don't know — I'm not sure vAiere you 

were with your question, but I hope that answer 

covers it. 

Q. Well, did the price change between the 

payment in June of 2008 of this production bonus/ did 

the price change starting in 2009 until sometime 

in — 

A, That is correct. There was just a, let's 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 



[09-8 72/8 73-EL-FAC 

9 

10 

v.ii-

12-. 

13 , 

•r4.-

"15-

: 16-; 

-"17-: 

18 

1-9 

20 

21 

22^ 

Z3-. 

24 

25 

151 

call it cash infusion in 200S and then there was a 

per-ton increase in 2009 for 2009 shipments, which 

was then ceased at the end of 2009- shipments, and 

then the contract price returned to its original 

level. 

Q. How .much coal" was AEP buying p-er year 

from-this supplier? 

"-•••, A. By "AE5"̂ ', ,1 ̂-rii-;assuming. ypU;̂  re referring; to"; 

Columbus--Sbu.th"ern- and, --'•• 

Q.; - Yes,., 

K,,-: I beli-^ve:. -f rjoiKî imê ridJ?̂  i t - w o u l d be";/about 

m i l l i o n o r "mil.:li.on, . 1 thinifci 

m i l l i o n . . " ;' • .-: '• ' : \V,;•>^ ..-:-•-". ••-

• . "A^-- • "Yesiv, ^%at-"MSgfet b e 

e n t i t y t h O r e , "s.0--•..""-,•-•.:\-"'• 

• m.-Jl)^KQ^SKI:-t-v- TSank ypu,->yoUr.g;on:or„--

/-Thm}?..--yQi?"i...'"M^r.-tosk. ^Q" f u r t h e r . . ' 

q u e s t i o n s . . 

" " KXAMli^R";-"JONES': " Thail-k; y o u . " . . '' 

Mr. "Glark?;-

- MR,. CLMIK: lEU h a s no q u e s t i o n s f o r t h i ^ 

w i t n e s s , your Honor;,-

ABMSTHGNG-5. OKEY, INC., Co-l̂ jmbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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questions 

witness? 

EXAMINER JONES: Staff have any 

MR, M?kRGARD: No, your Honor 

EXSMIHER JONES: Any redirect for this 

MR. NOURSE: Briefly 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

By Mr,. Hourse; 

Q. Mr. Rusk^ Mr Idzkowski asked you about 

this contract support that you discussed. It's the 

one you discuss beginning on the bottom of page 16 

and following in your testiraony and discussing the 

financial difficulty associated with that and why you 

agreed to the terms and what was reflected in the 

FAC. Do you reraeraber those questions? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q- Okay. I s i t your u n d e r s t a n d i n g t h a t even 

with t h e i n c r e a s e d p r i c e i n 2009, t h e a l l - i n p r i c e 

under t h e c o n t r a c t was s t i l l below joaaxket or was 

c o m p e t i t i v e l y p r i c e d ? 

A Well, i f I may, i t may have been i n t h6 

area, of t h e market p r i c e I d o n ' t b e l i e v e t h a t i t 

was below, b u t i t was p robab ly n e a r t h e market p r i c e . 

But t h e r e a l i s s u e was i f we would have had t o have 

i\RMSTR0NG & OKEY, INC., ColumbUS, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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gone out and replaced this coal and not been able to 

obtain this particular coal during this time period, 

we would have probably driven the price in the 

marketplace up just by our own participation.. 

Q., And the other portion of this agreement 

being referred to as the production bonus payment 

that was discussed earlier, was that reflected in the 

FAC, to your knowledge? 

A. I'm not sure I remember what you're 

talking about. I'm sorry, 

Q. The production bonus payment in 

Yes.. I t was t h a t t h e ques t ion was 

Was t h a t r e f l e c t e d i n t h e FAC fo r Ohio 

June 2008 

A, 

vjhat? 

Power ? 

A. Ko, I don^t b e l i e v e i t was. of course . 

Witness Dooley would be ab le t o answer t h a t b e t t e r , 

but I d o n ' t t h i n k i t was. I 'm r e l a t i v e l y c e r t a i n 

wasn ' t« 

Q. Now, you i n d i c a t e d t e a r l i e r t h a t t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r form of c o n t r a c t suppor t you d idn^t r e c a l l 

any examples t h a t were e x a c t l y t h e same, c o r r e c t ? 

A„ What was t h a t aga in? So r ry , 

Q. You d i d n ' t r e c a l l any o the r examples of 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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contract support that were structured exactly the 

same as this one. 

A. Not exactly the same, no. 

Q. But you do, as the auditor notes, AEP 

does support its suppliers when it's prudent to do So 

and has done that on numerous occasions where 

appropriate, correct ? 

A. When we have worked with counterparties 

and they have been good suppliers and it is prudent 

fox us to, we believe, to keep them as a 

counterparty, and if they are, for example, 

struggling financially, it is, we believe, in the 

best interest of all parties to keep them there, to 

foster competition and to go ahead and provide that, 

kind of support to maintain that entity there. 

MK. NOURSE: Thank you, Mr. Rusk-

That's all I havBf your Honor. 

EXAMINER JONES: Mr. Idzkowski, anything 

further based on that redirect? 

MR.. IDZKOWSKI; No, thank you, your -

Honor 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you . 

Anyone e l s e ? Mr, C l a r k ? 

MR. CLARK: No, y o u r Honors 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you , Mr. Rusk . 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481' 
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You may step down then. 

MR. NOURSE: Your Honor, I move for the 

admission of Company Exhibits 2 and 2A« 

EXAMINER JONES: Any objection to the 

admission of Company Exhibits 2 and 2A? 

Hearing none^ they shall be so admitted^ 

(EXHIBITS ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.) 

EXAMINER JONES: At this time we will ' 

allow you to, if you're prepared, to go ahead and 

call your next witness, but we will probably break as 

soon as we get ready for cross-examination after you 

get them on the stand. 

MR. NOURSE: Sure. Your Honor. We call 

Philip J.. Nelson to the stand. 

(Witness sworn.) 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you, please be 

seated. 

You may proceed, Mr. Nourse.. 

MR™ NOURSE: Thank you, your Honor. 

I'd like to mark Mr. Nelson's prefiled; 

direct testimony/ the confidential version, as ^" 

Companies' Exhibit No. 3, the public version as 

Companies' Exhibit 3A. 

EXAMINER JONES: They shall be so marked. 

MR.. NOURSE: Thank you„ 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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(EXHIBITS MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION 

PHILIP J. NELSON 

being first duly sworn, as prescribed by law, was 

examined and testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

By Mr. Nourse: 

Q. Mr. Nelson, do you have the exhibits I , 

just marked for the record before you? 

A- Yes. 

Q. Is this your direct testimony prepared by 

you or under your direction? 

A, Yes. 

Q. Do you have any changes, corrections, or 

additions this afternoon? 

A. Just one on page 1 of Exhibit 3. Up ih 

the header on the last line, the case number is 

incorrect. The second case number should be 09-873. 

And likewise on Exhibit 3A, the same correction. 

Q. Thank you. Good catch. 

"All'right." -With that correction, if you 

were asked these same questions under oath today 

would your answers be the same? 

A. They would-

MR. NOURSE: Your Honor, I'd tender the 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., ColumbUS, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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witness for cross-examination. 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you, Mr. Nourse, 

At this time we are going to take a 

15-minute break. Hopefully that's all the longer it 

will be, and I will see the parties back here at 

approximately 3:45. 

(Recess taken.) 

EXAMINER JONES: Let's go back on the •-

record., 

Mr, Idzkowski, you may proceed with your 

cross-examination. 

MR. IDZKOWSKI: Thank you, your Honor. 

_ _ _ 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

By Mr, Idzkowski: 

Q, Good afternoon, Mi\. Nelson. 

A, Good afternoon. 

Q.. Now, your position with AEP Service 

Company or AEPSC is director of strategy pricing and 

analysis? 

A.. Director of regulatory pricing ^nd 

analysis. 

Q- Director of regulatory pricing and 

analysis.. Are you a CPA? 

A, No, I'm not. 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, I N C . , C o l u m b u s , Ohio (€14) 2 2 4 - 9 4 8 1 
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Q. And what are your areas of responsibility 

with AEPSC? 

A. My areas of responsibility are in the 

pricing area, regulatory filings, maintenance of 

tariffs. My department also does class cost of 

service, jurisdictional cost of service, as well as 

administer certain formula rate contracts and various 

analysis around AEP generation, AEP pools. 

Q.. Your department doesn't do coal 

procurement contracts and their related negotiations, 

correct? 

A- No, it does not. 

Q„ Now, the purpose of your testimony is to 

address certain management financial audit 

recommendations, specifically recommendation 1 as 

well as 3, 6a, 6 b, 6e, 6f, and 6j, correct? 

A. And I think 6g as well, 

Q. 6g? All right. 

If you could look at page 4 of your 

testimony, please, regarding the first management 

audit recommendation. Tell me ^^en you're there. 

And do you also have a copy of the audit report in 

front of you? 

A.. Yes, I do.. 

Q- A l l r i g h t . . L e t me know when y o u ' r e 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., ColumbUS, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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^ ready, when you're at that point in your testimony. 

2 A. Okay, I'm on page 4, . 

3 Q.. All right- Here you're discussing a 

^ recommendation No„ 1 that deals with a renegotiated 

5 contract involving the coal supplier and AEP, 

^ correct? 

"̂  A. Yes, what we refer to as 2008 settlement 

agreement'.. 

3 Q- In that settlement agreement AEP received 

a $ B million note payable over a period of time, 

11 correct? 

12 A . Yes, . 

10 

13 Q 

14 A 

Q 15 

And that note has been paid, correct? ; 

Yes -

And the audit recommendation states that 

1̂  the Commission should review whether any of the 

1̂  proceeds from the settlement agreement should be a 

19 credit against OPCo's FAC underrecovery, correct? ; 

19 A. Yes. 

2^ Q. Now, this buyout of a contract is 

21 discussed aii page 2-21 in the audit report, if you 

22 want to refer to that, but it was negotiated in 2007 

23 and booked prior to the ESP period, but it relates• to 

24 coal that was shipped during the ESP period, correct? 

25 A. Well, there are several components to the 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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settlement.. We've talked about it here. There isn't 

only one component. There was the cash payment as 

well as reserves received. There was the termination 

of the existing contract as well as a new contract 

beginning-January 1st, 2009. 

Q, Those reserves as received hy AEP as part 

of this settlement, they're in| 

A. That's my understanding, yes.. 

Q.. So would they -̂. they wouldn't 

necessarily be used by AEP, then, would they? 

AEP-Ohio? 

A» I don't think at this point it's known — 

Q., They could be used — 

A„ — how they would be used. 

Q- They could be used by another utility 

altogether, couldn't they? . 

A. They could-

Q. All right. Now, in 2008 AEP received a 

^HBmillion cash payment or note from this coal 

producer, correct? 

A. Yes, at the end of the year, November. 

Q. What was that in connection with? 

A. That was in connection with a failure to 

deliver a certain tonnage of coal in 2006. 

Q. Was it i n connection with a 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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nonperfonaance issue that the coal, you know. 

nonperformance of the contract by the coal producer? 

A. 

Q. 

matter? 

A. 

Q-

Yes. 

Was there litigation involved in that 

I don't know. 

You weren't involved — you weren't 

directly involved in that negotiation, were you? 

A. 

Q-

additional 

correct? 

A. 

settlement? 

• Q -

A, 

received. 

Q. 

negotiation 

A.. 

it would be 

Q. 

I .was not-

So you don't know if AEP received any 

value as a result of that settlement, 

As a result of the November 2008 

Yes.. 

No, I'm not aware of any additional value 

Do you know who was involved in that 2Q08 

and settlement? 

No, I do not, other than I would expect • 

our Fuel Supply Group. 1 

You state on page 4 of your testimony 

that the value of the property with coal reserves is 

estimated at jJU million.. Do you see that? 1 

A. Yes. 

1 1 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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Q. But you don't personally have any idea 

what t h e value of that property with coal reserves 

is, correct? 

A« No, I do not-

Q., You.don't know how the coal reserves were 

valued at •million, correct? 

A. My understanding is that, you know, a 

valuation was done at the time the settlement was 

entered into and that that was the amount that the 

company recorded on its books as the value of those 

reserves. 

Q. But you don't know anything about how 

that value was determined though, correct? 

A.. No.. 

Q- And while not being involved in the 

contract negotiations we've been talking about, you 

testify on page 5 that OPCo is fine with the 

Commission reviewing these negotiations and 

settlements but that the Commission should limit its 

review to the audit period, correct? 

A- That's correct. 

Q. Well, let me ask this: How would the 

Commission — you testify it is fine the Commission 

reviews the renegotiation but it should also limit 

its review to the audit period- These negotiations 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., ColumbUS, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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occurred outside of the audit period. 

A, Yes. Well, in certain instances there 

may be some carryover into an audit period and, you 

know, for the auditor to actually look at these 

contracts, we don't have an objection to that,. She 

has to determine whether in fact there was any impact 

on the audit period. And I believe in this instance 

there isn't any impact on the audit period. 

Q, It's your position, in fact, on page 5 

that the review by the Commission will confirm that 

AEP made the proper entries in its books in 

connection with the renegotiation of these coal 

contracts, but you weren't involved in the contracts 

and you're not a CPA, so how do you make — how is 

that your view? 

A. Well, it's my view because I was very : 

much involved in the company's proceedings in the ESP 

and ESP, and I knov7 for a fact that we had no fuel 

clause in 2008, we didn't have one during the RSP 

period, in fact, we hadn't had a fuel clause since I 

believe 2000. r 

I knew that we did propose a fuel clause 

in the ESP and that fuel clause was well debated i t 

that case, and that fuel clause began January 1st, 

2009. 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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I also know that Ohio Power's fuel costs 

went up dramatically in 2008, substantial increases 

that negatively impacted the company's earnings in 

that year, and that in this proceeding what I think 

some of the parties are attempting to do is just to 

look at certain transactions, try to extract that ] 

value and say if the company hypothetically did have 

a fuel clause in 2008, then we want that particular 

value. 

.But I think what the Commission has to ̂ o 

is look at the whole situation. One, most 

importantly, we didn't have a fuel clause in 2008, 

Secondly, when you take all the transactions that 

occurred on Ohio Power in total, you will see that 

the company experienced a dramatic increase in fuel' 

and was harmed by not having a fuel clause in 2008.. 

Another point is that it was very well 

recognized in the ESP proceeding that we would have a 

significant underrecovery balance to be recovered 

through the-phase-in. And what's transpired is 

exactly what we expected, and that's really a result 

of the rate caps. 

So I think that's why I'm offering my 

opinion for those various reasons-

Q. Bnt in connection as to specific entries, 

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 
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as to specific entries on its books, placed on its 

books in connection with these renegotiations, which 

you didn't directly participate in, you're not 

qualified to have a position on this, are you? 

MR., NOURSE: Objection, your Honor.. 

EXA24INER JONES: Sustained. 

Q. The audit report states that the value of 

this coal reserve is unclear, correct? 

A. I don't recall it specifically stating . 

that, but I would agree that it is fairly unclear. 

There's been a lot of different numbers thrown 

around.. 

Q. And you recall the audit report stating 

that using ̂ ^ B B H price forecast, the value of the; 

reserve on a net present value basis using an 

^•percent discount rate could be $BH||million? 

A. Yeah. There's a particular sentence iri 

the audit report on page 2-21 that I believe says 

exactly that. It says, "Using ̂ ^^••price foreca$t, 

the value of the reserve on a net present value basis 

using ah^H percent discoiint rate would be 

$d|million.. " 

Q. Then why do you maintain that the value 

of that reserve is ^m million? 

A. Alls I said is that's what we recorded on 
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the books, the $Umillion. I don't know the value 

today. Maybe someone else does. 

Q. As to that renegotiated price in 2007 and 

'8, that affected the price of coal to AEP in 2009,: 

correct? 

A, Well, as part of the settlement 

agreement, the 2008 settlement agreement, January 1, 

there was a new contract taken with that same 

supplier; however, the old contract was terminated- at 

the end of 2008. ' 

Q. So the value of the coal price stayed 

constant from the date it was signed. The 

negotiation settlement was signed in January of '08;, 

It stayed constant until December 31st of '08,. Thein 

it went up in 2009, correct? 

A.. Well, there were two separate contracts. 

One was terminated, and I assume that contract price 

went through 2008, I don't know if there's any 

escalators in that particular contract.. And then a ' 

new contract was taken beginning January 1st, 2009» 

Q. And that increased the price during 2009.. 

A, It was I think a market price in that 

contract. The old one was well below market. 

Q.. You testify — if you could look at page 

6, please. You testify about Mr, Dooley's testimony. 
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and you say at lines 11 — or, 10 to 12, "The proper 

accounting also resulted in some of the 2008 

Settlement Agreement payments received by OPCo being 

flowed through the FAC, as Mr- Dooley explains." Is 

that Mr. Dooley's opinion or your opinion? 

A,. It appears in Mr. Dooley's testimony, 50 

it's his opinion that I'm relying on. 

Q., You're just relying on it, all right. : 

It's not your expert opinion., 

A. I have no reason to doubt it-

Q. You're not a CPA, correct? 

A. I'm not a CPA, 

Q. You testify that, on page 6, proper 

accounting also resulted in some of the 2008 

settlement agreement payments received by OPCo being 

flowed through the FAC, as Mr. Dooley — I think we 

just read.that, sorry. 

Is it — strike that. 

Is it a certainty that the coal contract 

with this coal supplier existing in 2007, in 2008 : 

could not have — well, it terminated, in January oif 

2003. But is it a certainty that that contract in 

2007 couldn't have continued-through 2009? 

THE WITNESS: Could you read that 

question back to me? 
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i (Record read.) 

2 A- I think you meant that it continued to 

^ 2008, the end of 2008, didn't terminate in January of 

^ 2008. 

^ Q„ I'll ask it again- The contract in 

s existence in 2007 with this coal supplier, regarding 

"̂  that contract, is it a certainty that it could not 

9 have continued through 2009? 

9 A.. - No.. It's just a high probability from 

what I am told. 

^̂  Q. On page 7 you testify regarding 

2̂ Mr. Rusk's testimony. At lines 10 to 13 you say that 

1̂  existing contracts would need to be renegotiated 

I'i because the contracts were unsustainable. Is your 

-̂  opinion relying on Mr.. Rusk's opinion? 

^̂  A. Yes, I'm relying on Mr. Rusk's opinion, 

^̂  as well as the auditor's opinion and the auditor's 

ŝ testimony in the EFC — or, I'm sorry, the ESP 

2-̂  proceedings. 

20 Q, And these contracts you're referring to 

21 are limited to fwo contracts, are they .not, the coal 

2^ supplier which AEP received the coal reserves and 

23 .?|||million, and also the ̂ H H ^ H H H H ^Qj^tract 

2^ support.. Just those two contracts are what you're. 

referring to, correct? 25 
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A. 

that's a 

contracts 

limiting 

In the sentence beginning 

little broader because I say 

169 

on line 10, 

existing coal 

might have needed, so I'm not necessarily 

to those two in that statement; however. 

with respect to this proceeding, we've 

talking about those two. 

questions 

By Mr. CI 

Q. 

MR. IDZKOWSKI: Thank you. 

Thank you, your Honor. I 

-

EXAMINER JONES; Thank you 

Mr,. Clark? 

been primarily 

Mr., Nelson. 

have no further 

-

MR. CLARK: Thank you, your Honor. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

ark: 

Mr. Nelson, my name is Joe 

counsel for lEU-Ohio, and I believe we 

deposition. 

involved 

Columbus-

A. 

Q. 

Mr. Nelson, you testified 

Clark, I'm 

met at your 

that you were 

in the ESP proceedings for Ohio Power and ; 

Southern -Power, correct? -

That's correct. 

And you-^^estifled in those 

proceedings, correct? 

A, I did. 

ESP 
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Q. And your ESP testimony addressed, in 

part, the FAC proposal by Columbus Southem and Ohio 

Power, correct? 

A. Yes,. 

Q.. .And if you recall, did some parties in 

the ESP proceedings recommend using actual 2008 fuel 

costs to set the FAC baseline? 

A. Yes- I believe several parties 

recommended that., 

Q- And in those ESP proceedings Ohio Power 

and Columbus Southern opposed using the actual 2008 

cost to set the baseline, correct? 

A. Yes. We had a method that actually 

unbundled the rates and determined the appropriate 

FAC component of the rates. That was not accepted by 

the Commission» They elected a third method. 

Q. Correct. So based on CSPs and OP's 

position in the ESP proceeding, CSP and OP had an 

opportunity to build actual 2008 fuel costs into 

their ESP rates and rejected the opportunity in the 

ESP proceedings, correct? 

A, We didn't reject it. The Commission was 

the one that made the ruling on what the proper 

baseline should be.. And, in fact, I see this attempt 

by some of the parties here as a thinly veilefd 
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attempt to cull back on that decision as well. The 

baseline was established in that proceeding and I 

think we need to move on to the FAC in 2009. 

Q.. But you opposed setting the baseline ~ 

pardon me, strike that. 

But Ohio Power and Columbus Southern 

Power opposed setting the baseline based on 2008 

actual fuel cost, correct? 

A. Correct., It was not an appropriate way 

to establish a baseline for the FAC in 2009-

Q.. Mr. Nelson, I wanted to also, in your . 

previous testimony you had discussed that you were^ 

involved in the RSP case as well, correct? 

A.. I was.. 

Q.. And you were involved in the formulation 

of the RSP proposal, correct? 

A. Yeah. I have had a role in it, yes. 

Q.. And the RSP was filed on February 9th,: 

2004, correct? 

A- That sounds right. 

Q.. And the case number was 04-169, correct? 

A,. Sounds familiar, 

QH The RSP application by the companies 

asked for automatic generation service rate 

Increases, correct? ' 
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1 A., It did. 

2 Q. And it also, the RSP application, also 

^ proposed the ability for the companies to ask for 

^ discretionary generation increases, correct? 

5 A. That' 5 correct.. 

^ Q., The RSP application, though, did not ask 

^ for any fuel clause or fuel recovery mechanism, 

6 correct? 

3 A„ That's correct. 

MR. CLARK: That's all I have, your 

11 Honor. 

12 EXAMINER JONES; Staff have any questions 

1̂  of this witness? 

1̂  MR,. MARGARD: No questions.. Thank you, 

15 your Honor­

is EXAMINER JONES: Any redirect for this 

17 witness? 

18 MR. NOURSE: Just briefly, your Honor. 

IS _ _ _ 

20 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

21 By Mr. Nourse: -

22 Q. Mr. Nelson, you were discussing with 

23 Mr, Clark the AEP-Ohio Rate Stabilization Plan just a 

moment ago; do you recall that? 24 

25 A. Y e s . ' 
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Q. Is AEP-Ohio in this proceeding in any way 

complaining about its prior rate plans attempting to 

retroactively modify those plans in any way? 

A,. No. In fact, because we didn't have a •• 

FAC in 2008, we incurred all these additional costs, 

but we're not the ones seeking to redefine this. We 

made the deal.. We probably made a mistake, perhaps, 

at least in 2008 in not having a fuel clause and we 

had to live with the consequences, and we're 

preparing to go forward and forget 2008, the past is 

past, and move on to 2009, 

MR. NOURSE: Thank you, your Honor. 

That's all the questions I have.. 

EXAMINER JONES: Any recross based on 

that redirect? 

MR. IDZKOWSKI: No, your Honor.. 

EXAMINER JONES: Mr. Clark? 

MR. CLARK: No, thank you, your Honor. 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you, Mr- Nelson.. 

You may step down. 

Moving the admission of Company Exhibits 

3 and 3A, Mr. Nourse? 

MR. NOURSE: Yes, thank you, your Honor. 

EXAMINER JONES: Any objection? 

Hearing none. Company Exhibits 3 and 3A 
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will be admitted. 

(EXHIBITS ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.) 

EXAMINER JONES: Let's go off the record 

a second 

(Discussion off the record..) 

EXAMINER JONES: Let's go back on the 

record 

The company may call its next witness,. 

MR. SATTERWHITE: Thank you, your-Honor, 

the company calls Peggy Simmons to the stand. 

(Witness sworn-) 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you. 

Mr-. Satterwhite, you may proceed-

MR,. SATTERWHITE: Thank you, your Honor.. 

PEGGY I, SIMMONS 

being first duly sworn, as prescribed by law, was 

examined and testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

By Mr,. Satterwhite: 

Q, Ms. Simmons, did you file testimony in. 

this docket on August 15th? 

A, Yes. 

MR. SATTERWHITE: At this time, your 

Honor, I'd like to mark the Prefiled Direct Testimony 
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of Ms., Simmons in this docket as Company Exhibit No. 

4. 

EXAMINER JONES: It shall be so marked. 

(EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION-) 

EXAMINER JONES: And I believe at this 

time, even though I think the door is still closed 

and there's no one else here that would like to come 

in, there's no reason to have a protected record for 

this cross-examination.. Correct? 

MR.. SATTERWHITE: Correct. If the 

witness feels there's something that's going to be 

confidential, just let us know. 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you, 

Q. All right, Ms. Simmons, do you have in 

front of you what's been marked as Company Exhibit 4, 

which is your prefiled testimony? 

A, Yes, I do. 

Q. Do you have any corrections or changes; to 

this testimony? 

A. No, I do not,. 

Q. Did you p r e p a r e t h i s t e s t i m o n y o r was jLt 

p repa red on your b e h a l f ? 

A. T h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. I f I asked you a l l t h e same q u e s t i o n s in 

t h i s tes t imony t o d a y , would your answers be the same? 
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A. 

q u e s t i o n s . 

Yes . 

MR. SATTERWHITE: I have no f u r t h e r 

I t e n d e r t h e w i tnes s for 

c ross -examina t ion . , 

- EXAMINER JONES: Thank, you. 

Mr. Idzkowski.. 

MR. IDZKOWSKI: Thank you, your Honor, 

176 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

By Mr, Idzkowski: 

Q, . Good afternoon, Ms. Siinmons. 

A, Good afternoon. 

Q. Your title is Manager-Renewable Energy?; 

A.. That is correct. 

Q.. I'll try to speak up,. If you can't hear 

me, let me know. 

A. Okay. : 

Q. I don't have a microphone. 

You work for the service company? 

A.. That is correct. 

Q. And you- use — your company uses : 

renewable energy purchase agreements to purchase 

RECs? 

A.. The company uses them.. We go through the 

broker market as wel.1 as power purchase agreements to 

" • - • ' ,, 11,1 - M i l . I . , , I I . — , . - . , , , . I.I. || I...I 
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a c q u i r e RECs, t h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. What i s an exaiaple of cus tomer-s ided 

d i s t r i b u t e d genera t ion? 

A. An example of cus tomer - s ided d i s t r i b u t e d 

g e n e r a t i o n would be i f a company had — i f a customer 

had s o l a r p a n e l s put on t h e i r r o o f t o p . 

Q. And then t hose a r e a b l e t o supply energy 

t o t h e g r id? 

• - A.. That would be my under s t and ing , co r rec t . . 

Q, How does t h e company e v a l u a t e ownership 

of c e r t a i n energy re source g e n e r a t i o n such as biomass 

c o - f i r i n g ? 

A, I f you t u r n t o page 4 of my tes t imony, 

you w i l l see t h a t AEP's New Technology Group, t hey go 

th rough a sc reen ing of v a r i o u s renewables and they go 

th rough a c o s t eva lua t i on , t h e v i a b i l i t y of t h a t 

r enewab le , and come up wi th d i f f e r e n t de t e rmina t ions 

of w h a t ' s t h e most pruident — w h a t ' s t h e most p rudent 

o p t i o n fo r t h e company,. 

Q. I s t he company on course t o meet the 

renewable energy benchmark s e t f o r t h in Senate B i l l 

221? 

A. AEP-Ohio i s c u r r e n t l y on t a r g e t t o meet 

t h o s e benchmarks; t h a t i s c o r r e c t , 

Q. I s t h a t your j o b t o oversee the p r o g r e s s 
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of the company toward those benchmarks? 

A, My department specifically — AEP goes : 

through a comprehensive planning process to find the 

most reliable, prudent manner for acquiring, excuse 

me, for meeting certain requirements in our various 

jurisdictions, including Senate Bill 221. My 

department's role specifically is, once there'is a 

strategy initiated and we share information back and 

forth, is to execute on the commercial aspects of 

that. 

Q. You testify that in late-'09, 2009, AEP 

began purchasing power generated from wind under two 

50 megawatt Fowler II long term wind power purchase 

agreements. 

A.. Yes. You're referring to page 3, line 22 

and 23 of my testimony, that's correct, 

Q, Thank you-

Will those wind power agreements remain 

in place long enough to meet AEP's long-term 

renewable energy benchmarks? ' 

A. The contracts are for a 20-year term. 

The output from those contracts will be used to meet 

the requirements set forth in the bill.. 

Q., What generation facilities that are 

renewable energy sources of generation does AEP own? 
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A. Sorry, could you repeat that? 

Q., Sure. 

MR.. ID2K0WSKI: Could you read the 

question back? 

THE REPORTER: Probably not™ 

(Record read..) 

MR, IDZKOWSKI: I'll restate it. 

Q., In terms of AEP ownership, what renewâ >le 

energy generation facilities does AEP presently owti? 

A. Curxently AEP Ohio owns the Newark and — 

the solar facilities that are sited on our Newark and 

Athens facilities as it relates to renewables. 

Q, And are those solar wind and biomass 

generation facilities? 

A- The facilities located on the Athens and 

Newark facility are solar facilities. 

Q, Solar. And on page 4 you talk about a 

list of criteria the company looks for when it 

evaluates renewable energy options. You list cost, 

location, feasibility, applicability to AEP's service 

territory, and commercial availability-

A, That is correct.. 

Q. Are these criteria given equal weight or 

are some given more weight? 

A. Well, each of'these in the new technology 
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group, whenever they look at each of these criteria, 

they're looking for the least-cost prudent option for 

the company; however, some — however, the noncost 

factors have to be taken in consideration for the 

viability of the option. 

Q., Well, let me ask you this: Is commercial 

availability given the same weight as the other 

criteria? 

A. I'll restate my answer. We look for the 

least-cost available option; however, nonprice 

factors are taken into consideration, such as whether 

there's an interconnection application that's in 

place for it to come on line in the time in which we 

need it to meet the needs, that would be one example; 

whether there are facilities that are being developed 

in the market that have been approved to meet such 

requirements, that's another — those are other 

considerations that are taken.. 

Q- Does the company have any plans to 

self-build wind turbine generation? 

A. As it states here, we are continually 

evaluating various options for — to meet Senate Bill 

221; however, currently the company would need a 

clear path to cost recovery in order for a self-build 

option. 
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Q, SO i s tha t a "no"? 

A, I will say that the company continues to 

evaluate all options to meet the requirements; 

however, we would need a clear path to cost recovexy 

for self-build.. 

Q. And I have to look for it, but your 

testimony refers to AEP using RFPs to secure 

long-term power purchase agreements, and you say 

these stipulate that all outputs of the bidder's 

facilities include environmental attributes. What 

are those environmental attributes? 

A, That would be all of the — any RECs or 

any future attributes that may come up in future 

legislation. Any environmental attribute that's 

associated with any type of renewable facility in our 

contract, we're saying it belongs to us, 

Q. So it doesn't limit it to — it would 

include RECs and any renewable energy aspects of it? 

A. Yes.. Our contracts include energy 

capacity ElECs and any environmental attributes. 

Q. All right- AEP disagrees with-the " 

conclusion in the audit report on page 6-7 which 

recommends greater emphasis be placed on the 

self-build option for renewables, correct? 

A. That is correct. 
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Q. Why is placing a greater emphasis on the 

self-build option something the company is opposed 

to? 

A„ Essentially, the way we look at meeting 

the requirements is we evaluate all options that are 

out there and which is the least-cost option and 

which provides the most benefit to the customer, and 

that's how we evaluate our options. Currently, as I 

mentioned earlier, we don't see a clear path for cqst 

rscovery for self-build options-

Q. Could that position change? 

A- Could you repeat that? I'm sorry, I 

couldn't hear you, 

Q. Could that position by AEP change? 

A.. Yes,. The company continues to evaluate 

its options. If it is determined that we see a clear 

path for cost recovery for a self-build option, that 

would be taken into consideration in our evaluation 

process. 

Q. And what might cause that position to , 

change, in ̂ our view? - • 

A- That is not in my scope of my testimony. 

Q. Well, let me ask you this: You say that 

wind power is more expensive than fossil, correct? 

A. Currently than existing fossil,. I do make 
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that statement, 

Q. And does this comparison take into 

consideration the cost of pollution-control equipment 

for coal-fired generation plants? 

A..- Does that statement take into 

consideration? 

Q, Yes, your comparison of wind power to 

fossil fuel generation. 

A.. No.. In my testimony I state that it's to 

existing fossil fuel generation. 

Q.. Yes, 

A. So currently it's not taking into 

consideration any potential environmental parameters 

or upgrades that would have to go on for fossil 

generation. 

Q. Well, does it take into consideration ; 

current pollution control costs? 

A. No. Essentially what I was coir^aring; 

here in my testimony was when compared to the current 

market and existing fossil that's currently in the 

mark-et today. 

Q. Right, but — 

A. The market price, 

Q- I'm sorry, I don't want to cut you off. 

A- I'm saying the current market price, and 
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we're comparing what the cost of installed wind is 

and what the dollar per megawatt-hour is and we're 

comparing the two, and wind there is a slight — 

there is a premium to that, 

Q.. So should I assume or should I take it 

that your comparison of wind power costs to fossil 

fuel generation costs includes the current level of 

pollution-control equipment necessary due to 

regulations currently? 

A. This is taking in consideration what's in 

the market right now and what that marketplace — not 

necessarily what will be coming on once these 

controls are added and what that cost will be — what 

that cost will have on the market price going 

forward,, 

Essentially what it's saying is that 

renewables, there is a slight premium for renewables, 

and that's why you see in various RSPs either there 

is a penalty, an ACP for noncompliance, or there's 

some type of basis point or return for complying. SO 

it's essentially just saying that the renewables, 

it's prevalent the renewables — there is a slight 

premium compared to existing market prices. 

Q.. What do you mean by a premium? 

A- I'm,just saying it costs more than 
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existing generation in the market currently^ 

Q. Can you look at your testimony at page 7 

starting at line 19, please. 

A, Yes, I have that. 

Q. Okay, And there you're talking about the 

cost of renewable energy versus fossil fuel and say, 

cost of renewable energy versus fossil fuel generated 

electricity "supports the rationale for renewable '• 

.standards to include either an incentive for 

compliance or, in the case of Ohio, a non-recovera]ple 

penalty for non-compliance." 

I'd like you to explain that, but I'll 

ask first, maybe — and you can go from here. Are 

you saying AEP would prefer to have regulations which 

ASP would continue to generate electricity with 

fossil fuel and pay a penalty for noncoiopliance if! 

that's more economically cost effective? 

A. That's not what I'm saying here. What 

I'm saying here is that renewables cost more than • 

what the existing market — what the existing cost; of 

energy is in the market right now, and with that 

being said, that's the rationale as to why there are 

ACPs that are nonrecoverable for utilities to go ooit 

and comply to bring more renewables on. 

If it was the cheapest option compared to 
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market right now, there would not need to be an 

incentive or penalty for compliance. You would 

already be doing that. 

MR. IDZKOWSKI: That's all the questions 

I-have, 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you. 

MI. Clark? 

MR. CLARK: to questions, your Honor, 

EXAMINER JONES: Staff? 

MR. MARGARD: Actually, yes.. Just a 

couple, your Honor„ 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

By Mr. Margard: 

Q. In response to the questions from OCC 

about self-build, am I understanding your testimony 

that the company's rationale for not placing more 

emphasis on that' is that it does not represent a 

least-cost option? 

A, Currently in* our evaluations it's not one 

of the least-cost options at the time. 

Q, Does the company believe that there are 

any advantages to self-build? 

A„ I believe that there are advantages to 

self-build; however, that's not in'the scope of my 
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testimony. 

Q. The company has, though, in your opinion, 

taken a look at these advantages and has considered 

them; it's just because of the cost factor that 

they're not pursuing the self-build option.. 

A, There is cost and there's also, my 

understanding, there's not a clear path for cost 

recover,. 

Q,. Let me ask you about that clear path, and 

if you can. tell me what you think would represent the 

clear path to cost recovery- What does that mean? 

MR. SATTERWHITE: Objection, your Hondr. 

EXAMINER JONES: Basis? 

MR,. SATTERWHITE; Asking for a legal , 

conclusion to describe the statutory or some type of 

process for' recovery of the regulatory system. 

EXAMINER JONES: I'm going to allow the 

witness to answer it if she can. 

A. What I can say about it is in my 

understanding from Legal-as to what has been laid out 

in the statute, there was not a clear ability for us 

to deploy capital and guarantee the cost for — 

recovery of all those costs that were incurred during 

that time.. ? 

Q. Do you know if the coir̂ any could get 
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recovery of self-build investments through your IRt 

process? 

A. 

Q.. 

A,. 

Thank you, 

redirect? 

step down. 

admission 

admission 

I am not — I do 

You don't know. 

No. 

MR. MARGARD: I ' 

your Honor, 

EXAMINER JONES: 

MR„ SATTERWHITE: 

EXAMINER JONES: 

Mr. Satterwhite, 

of Company Exhibit 

MR. SATTERWHITE: 

EXAMINER JONES: 

Of Company Exhibit 

Hearing none, it 

not know.. 

think that's all I have. 

Mr-. Satterwhite, 

No, your Honor. 

Ms. Simmons, you may 

are you now moving the 

No- 4? 

Yes. Thcink you. 

Any objection to the 

No. 4? 

shall be admitted. 

(EXHIBIT ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.) 

•EXAMINER JONES: 

Mr. Idzkowski has a stipulat: 

At this time I belieVe 

Lon that was referenced 

-
earlier this morning about some cross-examination 

that all the parties have had an opportunity to look 

at and sign.. 

) Is that correct. Mr.. Idzkowski? 
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MR. IDZKOWSKI: That is correct, yoxir 

Honor, and thank you for reminding me of that. We 

have in this case, and this has been signed — the 

stipulation's been signed by all the parties in this 

case, and we would be filing this today. It is 

related to an area of questioning we thought — OCC 

thought would be prudent to get into with the 

financial auditor because some of that information in 

the financial part of the audit report dealt with • • 

information regarding this other case, these other 

two cases involving a company that's a party in this 

case, Ormet, and those cases are case numbers 

08-1338-EL-AAM and 08-1339-EL-UNC. 

Without going into a great deal of 

detail, there's a brief stipulation and 

recommendation by the parties signed in this case . 

that we'll be filing at the end of the day, 

EXAMINER JONES: Thank you. Is it the 

parties' intention that this be made an exhibit in 

the case? 

MR. IDZKOWSKI: I think that would be our 

intention, your Honor. 

MR. NOURSE: Sure, Joint Exhibit 1-

EXAMINER JONES: Should we mark this as a 

joint exhibit, then. No.. 1? 
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MR, IDZKOWSKI: That would be good, 

EXAMINER JONES: Let's mark it as such» 

(EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.) 

EXAMINER JONES: You may file it. 

There has been no objection. Do we know 

whether or not Oirmet has seen this document and 

agreed to it? 

MR, NOURSE: Yes, they agreed to it. 

MR. IDZKOWSKI: They have signed it and 

agreed to it. 

EXAMINER JONES: .Thank you. Without 

objection we will admit Joint Exhibit No. 1. 

(EXHIBIT ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.) 

MR- IDZKOWSKI: Thank you your Honor„ 

EXAMIJJER JONES: Anything further for us 

to do this afternoon? If not, let's just go off the 

record for just a second, 

(Recess taken,) 

EXAMINER JONES: Let's go back on the^ 

record just a second. We are going to adjourn until 

10:00 a..m: tomorrow morning at which time we'll t̂ ke. 

up the testimony of OCC Witness Dr. Duaim, 

With that we're adjourned until tomorrow 

morning. Thank you„ 

(The hearing adjourned at 4:37 p.m.) 
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